THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

S,

The Diacese
of Southwer k

Directors’ and Trustees’ Report

and Financial Statements

for the year ended 31* December 201 |

TR

*A190812J)°
AD3 26/05/2012 #126
COMPANIES HOUSE

Company number 150856
Charity number 241083

>-
a
o
o
>
=
<
Wn




THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Directors’ and Trustees” Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Directors’ and Trustees’ Report 20} 1

The directors of the London Diocesan Fund (LDF), who are also trustees, present their report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 201 1.

Reference and Administrative Details, Trustees and Advisers

Name and registered office

The LDF is a company limited by guarantee and registered in England (150856). it 1s a registered charity
(241083) Its registered and principal office 1s at London Diocesan House, 36 Causton Street, London,
SWIP 4AU The LDF was incorporated in England on 29% June 1918

Directors, Trustees and Members of the Diocesan Bishop’s Council

All members of the Bishop's Council and Standing Commuttee, described more fully below, are, except !
where specifically noted, directors of the company for the purposes of the Companies Acts and are !
Trustees under chanity law The members on |4t May 2012, the date of approval of this report, were ‘

President and Chairman
The Rt Revd and Rt Hon the Lord Bishop of London, Dr R ) C Chartres KCVO

Lay Vice Chairman
Mr D E Loftus, Diocesan Synod House of Laity

Clerical Vice Chairman
The Revd Preb D N C Houlding, Diocesan Synod House of Clergy

Ex Officio

The Bishop of Stepney, the Rt Revd A Newman (from 22/7/1 1)
The Bishop of Kensington, the Rt Revd P G Williams

The Bishop of Edmonton, the Rt Revd P G Wheatley

The Bishop of Willesden, the Rt Revd P A Broadbent

The Bishop of Fulham, (vacant)

The Archdeacon of London, the Ven D Meara -
The Archdeacon of Charing Cross, the Ven Dr W M Jacob i
The Archdeacon of Hackney, the Ven R Treweek (from 22/7/11) '
The Archdeacon of Middlesex, the Ven S | Welch

The Archdeacon of Hampstead, the Ven L | Miller

The Archdeacon of Northolt, the Yen R Treweek (until 22/7/1 1, then vacant)

The Dean of St Paul’s Cathedral, the Rt Revd Graeme Knowles (untl 31/1/12, then vacant)

Elected by The House of Laity, Diocesan Synod (3 seats)
Mr D Hurst

Mr B O’'Donoghue

Ms M Murrelt

The following members were elected by the various Areas.

Two Cities Stepney

The Revd O C M Ross The Revd G L Warren
The Revd W T Taylor The Revd ) Blackburn
Mr S C Finch Mrs C Adekunle

Mr | D Freeman Mrs M Ford

Mr K D Stern Ms | W Munro

Mr E D Roberts Dr P Rice (*)
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Kensington

The Revd Dr A Emerton
The Revd Dr B Mayo
Mrs A Barrett

Mr H A Evans

Mr ) P Normand

Willesden

The Revd A R Corsie
The Revd M Stone
Mr M A Carmody
Mr | R Doliing

Mr C R Scowen

Mrs S Wright

Edmonton

The Revd Preb C G Pope

Mrs A K Atkins
Mr S | Jones

Mrs A L Ruoff
Mr | R M Woolf

Nominated by the Bishop of London
The Revd N R Holtam (unul 22/7/11)
The Revd K S Swithinbank (from 25/8/1 1)

Members are shown In the categories in which they are currently appointed They may previously have
served as members n a different capacity. *Dr P Rice 1s a member of the Bishop’s Council and Standing
Committee but 1s not a director of the LDF nor a trustee

Senior staff

The bishops and archdeacons of the diocese exercise day to day control of the LDF Mr A Brookes is the
LDF's Chief Executive and General Secretary He also acts as secretary to the Bishop’s Council Some
senior staff members have the utle director in their job ttles but they are not directors of the LDF for the
purposes of company law nor are they trustees of the charity

Dhrector of Property:

Director of Finance and Operations
Head of HR

Head of Strategic Development

Professional advisers

Auditors

Mazars LLP

Mr M Bye

Mrs H Simmons
Ms P Bailey
MrM Girt

Solicitors

Times House
Throwley Way
Sutton, Surrey

SMI 4)Q

Insurers Ecclesiastical Insurance Bankers

Group PLC

Beaufort House
Brunswick Road
Gloucester,GLI 1JZ

Communications
Consultants Limited

Luther Pendragon

3 Priory Court,
Pigrim Street
London, EC4V 6DR

Winckworth Sherwood
Minerva House
5 Montague Close

London
SEl 9BB

Barclays Bank PLC
Knightsbridge Business
Centre

P O Box 32014
London , NWI1 272G
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Constitution, structure, governance and management
Summary information about the structure of the Church of England

The Church of England i1s organised as two provinces each led by an archbishop (Canterbury for the
Southern Province and York for the Northern) Each province comprises dioceses, of which there are 42
in England Each diocese in England is divided to parishes Each parish 1s overseen by a parish priest (the
incumbent, usually called a vicar or rector)

Her Majesty the Queen, who s the Supreme Governcr of the Church of England, appoints Archbishops,
bishops and deans of cathedrals on the advice of the Prime Minister. The two Archbishops and the Brshop
of London are members of the Privy Councll They, together with the Bishops of Durham and Winchester,
are ex-officio members of the House of Lords In addition, there are 21 other bishops who are admitted in
order of their length of service as diccesan bishops

The Church of England is led and governed by Bishops in Synod General Synod makes decisions on
matters of doctrine, church services and relations with other churches General Synod passes measures
which, if accepted by Parliament, have the effect of acts of Parliament It s made up of three groups or
houses of members the Houses of Bishops, of Clergy and of Laity, and meets in London or York at least
twice annually

The three National Church Institutions

The Archbishops' Council, the Church Commissioners and the Church of England Pensions Board are
sometimes referred to as the three Natonal Church Institutions (NCls)

The Archbishops' Council was established in 1999 to co-ordinate, promote, aid and further the mission of
the Church of England. Its task 1s to give a clear sense of direction to the Church nationally and support
the Church locally by acting as a policy discussion forum

The Church Commissioners manage the historic assets of the Church of England They are responsible for
paying pensions for the clergy accrued before 1997 In addition to the costs of Episcopal administration
they also make grants for developments in areas of missionary opportunity.

The Church of England Pensions Board was established by the Church Assembly in 1926 as the Church of
England's pensions authority and to administer the pension scheme for the clergy Subsequently it has been
given wider powers, in respect of discretionary benefits and accommodation both for those retired from
stipendiary mimistry and for widows and widowers of those who have served in that ministry, and to
administer pension schemes for lay employees of Church organisations A new fund was established to
cover pensionable service after 1997

The Board, which reports to General Synod, is trustee of a2 number of pension funds and charitable funds
Whilst the Church has drawn together under the Board its central responsibilities for reurement welfare,
the Board works in close cooperation both with the Archbishops' Council and with the Church
Commissioners
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St Paul’s Cathedral and Westminster Abbey

St Paul’s Cathedral 1s the mother church of the Diocese of London and legally i1s constituted as a separate
charity Westminster Abbey 1s a Royal Peculiar, which means that it falls directly under the jurisdiction of
the Briush monarch, rather than under a Bishop

The information about General Synod, the Church Commussioners, the Archbishops’ Council, St Paul’s
Cathedral and Westminster Abbey 1s included as background only The financial transactions of these
bedies do not form part of these financial statements

The Diocese of London

The Diocese of London was founded in Roman times and was re-founded in 604 by St Mellitus It 15 one of
the 44 dioceses of the Church of England (42 in England, plus the Diocese of Europe and the Diocese of
Sodor & Man} In its current form, it covers |8 boroughs of London and Surrey mostly north of the River
Thames and west of the River Lea in Greater London It serves 3.9 million people in 277 square miles

The Diocese 1s led by the Bishop of London He has delegated certain powers to four Area brshops, the
Bishops of Edmonton, Kensington, Stepney and Willesden, and a Suffragan, the Bishop of Fulham There 1s
an archdeacon for each of these four areas There is also one archdeacon for the City of London and one
for the City of Westmunster, these two archdeaconries forming the Two Cities area whrch 1s fed by the
Bishop of London personally Each archdeaconry is subdivided into deaneries There are 24 deaneries

Each deanery consists of several parishes, there are over 400 parishes in the Diocese. The Parochial
Church Counail (PCC) 1s the elected governing body of an individual pansh  The PCC 1s made up of the
incumbent as chair, the churchwardens and a number of elected and ex offico members Each PCC s a
corporate body and a separate charity PCCs are responsible, inter alia, for the maintenance of churches
and certain other buildings. Except where shown, the transactions of PCCs do not form part of these
financial statements.

The statutory governing body of the Diocese 15 1ts Synod, which is an elected body with representaton
from all parts of the Diocese It 1s governed by Standing Orders approved by the Diocesan Synod
inaugurated on 174 November 1970 and amended from time to time Lay members are elected by deanery
synods, which are comprised of members elected by parish members Clergy members are similarly
elected by the clergy in deanery synods The bishops and archdeacons of the Diocese are ex officio
members In addition, a small number of members may be co-opted or nominated. The Diocesan Synod
meets at least twice per year Many of the Synod’s responsibilities are delegated to the Bishop’s Counall,
which acts as a standing committee.

The Bishop's Council consists of up to 30 members elected by Area by the Diocesan Synod, up to three
members elected by the House of Laity of the Diocesan Synod, up to 16 ex officco members, being mostly
bishops and archdeacons, and up to five members nominated by the Bishop of London The Council meets
at least three times per year

The Diocese cenducts its financial affairs through a number of corporate bodies The main body 15 the
London Diocesan Fund (“the LDF”)
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The London Diocesan Fund

The objects for which the LDF 1s established and for which suitable powers are granted in its constitution
are, In summary, as follows

To promote and assist the work and objects of the Church of England for the advancement of the
Chrisuan religion in the Diocese of London, and in particular to arganise and provide funds for the
following departments of the Church’'s work.

& maintenance of the Clergy generally, including Bishops Suffragan, Incumbents, and Assistant
Curates,

» erection and repair and endowment of Churches, Church Buildings, Schools, Mission Buildings, and
Residences for Incumbents,

* training of candidates for the Ministry, Clerical and Lay,

# provision of Readers and other Lay Ministers;

« provision of Pensions for the Clergy, and Lay Ministers, provision for widows, orphans and

dependents of the Clergy, and for necessitous Clergy;

assistance towards endowment whether for Incumbencies or Curacies;

religious education of the young,

proviston of expenses of Diocesan and central organisations,

provision for Residences for Curates and Lay Ministers, Insututes, Halls, Social Clubs, Refuges and

Homes, and the repair and endewment of the same; and

* such other objects, If any, as it may from time to time be found desirable to promote for
strengthening the religious or other charitable work of the Church.

¥ ¥y ®m X

The LDF 1s governed by its Constitution which may not be altered or varied without resolution of the
Diocesan Synod The Constitution 1s regularly reviewed and amended from time to time Having obtained
the Chanty Commission’s consent revisions were adopted by the Annual General Meeung in 2010 and
approved by Diocesan Synod The artcles specifically give authority to members of the clergy to participate
In decisions where they may have an interest through virtue of the holding of clerical office

Every member of the Council is a member of the company unless they decline to take membership Each
member undertakes to contribute to the assets of the LDF, in the event of its being wound up, such
amount as may be required not exceeding £1

The members of the LDF are trustees of the charity and also its directors for Companies Acts purposes
The Chairman of the LDF 1s the Bishop of London The LDF also acts as custodian trustee and as agent to
other boards, committees and trusts within the Lendon Diocese of the Church of England

Statutory functions

The LDF has responsibility for management of glebe assets to generate income to support the cost of
stipends It 1s the Diocesan Authonity for parochial and other trusts and incorporates the responsibilities of
the Diocesan Parsonages Board The trustees are custodians of PCC property The Diocesan Synod has
appointed the Council as Diocesan Mission and Pastoral Committee and, as such, it acts principally through
the Diocesan Strategic Policy Committee and Area Councils, which have delegated powers All funds held
under the Dioceses, Pastoral and Mission Measure 2007 are included in these accounts
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The LDF has delegated certain powers to its Finance Committee The Finance Committee meets at least
six times each year. The LDF has delegated certain powers to Area Councils The committees have power
to co-opt members, subject to elected and ex offico members being the majority The London Diocesan
Board for Schools (LDBS) 1s a separate legal entty and oversees the Church of England Schools in the
diocese

Diocesan Finance Committee (DFC)

The DFC is a sub-committee of the Bishop’s Council Its membership comprises laity and clergy By a
special resolution dated |0th December 1970 its lay membership must be in the majority The Bishop of
London, the archdeacons, the Clerical and Lay Vice Chairmen and the Treasurer (if appointed} of the LDF
are ex officio members The DFC makes recommendations to the Council.

Members of the Diocesan Finance Committee:

(also Members of the Bishop’s Council) (not Members of the Bishop’s Council)
The Rt Revd and Rt Hon the Lord Bishop The Revd Preb A Roberts
of London R ] C Chartres KCVO Mr E Wong

The Archdeacon of London, the Ven D Meara Mr D Barton

The Archdeacon of Charing Cross, the Ven Dr W M Jacob (Chair) Mr R Dean

The Archdeacon of Hackney, the Ven R Treweek (from 22/7/11) Mr N Manns

The Archdeacon of Middlesex, the Ven S ] Welch Mr R N Perry

The Archdeacon of Hampstead, the Ven L | Miller Dr S Wilmington

The Archdeacon of Northolt, the Ven R Treweek (untl 22/7/1 1) Mr A Garwood-Watkins
The Revd Preb D N C Houlding Mr D Hunter

The Revd Preb C G Pope

The Revd Dr A Emerton Mr | R Dolling

Mr B O’Donoghue Mr D E Loftus

Ms | W Munro Mr E D Roberts

Mr K D Stern Mr | R M Woolf

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee 1s a sub-committee of the Bishop’s Councill Members are appointed by the Bishop's
Council for three years Its membership may be drawn from the Council and the DFC and from outside
these bodies At least two members (in addition to the chair) are to be from the Bishop's Council and
current DFC members must be in the minority

The Committee reviews the systems of internal financial control Each year it considers the need for
internal audit of the LDF's operations and has concluded sc far that use of the LDF's chamtable funds to
establish an internal audit capability would be disproportionate to the risks It reviews the annual accounts
prior to submission to the whole Council

Members of the Audit Committee:

(also Members of the Bishop's Council) {not Members of the Bishop’s Council)
The Revd ] Blackburn Mr N Fletcher

Mr ] D Freeman (Charir) Mr R N Perry

Mr | R M Woolf
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Risk Management

With other organisations, the LDF faces rnisks to its operations, finances and reputation. The officers
consider, evaluate and record the major areas of risk to which the LDF i1s exposed, assessing both the
likelhood and impact of those risks crystalising The officers explain and recerd the measures in place to
manage and mitigate these risks The process of identification and assessment of risk, the risks so identfied
and the measures for mitigation are reviewed at least annually by the Audit Committee. The results are
recorded in a risk register, which 1s available for inspection by all directors and trustees As part of new
directors’ and trustees’ induction details of the risk management process and risks are provided A formal
report on risk management Is considered by the Council annually

Trustee Training

The Trustees review the knowledge, skills and experience of the trustees and provide appropriate training
sessions to address their needs New Trustees are provided with a handbook outlining their main
respensibilities

Related bodies
Under the terms of arrangements made in [ 919, the LDF incorporates the functions of the London

Diocesan Board of Finance and the Bishop of London's Fund of which brief details are given below-

The Bishop of London’s Fund (BLF)

Patron The Most Revd and Rt Hon The Lord Archbishop of Canterbury
President The Rt Revd and Rt Hon the Lord Bishop of London
Treasurer Mr | R M Woolf

The president and treasurer are ex officio trustees.

Other Trustees The Ven Dr W M Jaccb
The Ven D Meara
The Ven S | Welch
Mr E D Roberts

Secretary Mr A Brookes
Solicitors Winckworth Sherwood, Minerva House, 5 Montague Close, London, SEl 9BB
Registered Office 36 Causton Street, London SWIP 4AU

The Bishop of London’s Fund was established in 1863 and was incorporated by the Board of Charity
Commussioners for England and Wales under the Chanitable Trustees Incorperations Act on 7% July 1882
The BLF 1s a registered charity (249021) The Finance Committee of the LDF constitutes its Executive
Committee Certain title and trust deeds are in the name of the BLF and a separate legal seal 1s kept For
day-to-day purposes and in accordance with a special resalution of 29 October 1918, its activities are
subsumed into the LDF, with which it shares common objectives The majority of the BLF’s assets were
transferred to the LDF in the last century

The London Diocesan Board of Finance

President. The Rt Revd and Rt Hon the Lord Bishop of London

Chasrman The Rt Revd and Rt Hon the Lord Bishop of London

Treasurer- Mr D E Loftus

Trustees The Trustees of the LDF

Secretary Mr A Brookes

Solicitors Winckworth Sherwood, Minerva House, 5 Montague Close, London, SEI 98B
Office 36 Causton Street, London SWIP 4AU
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The London Diocesan Board of Finance was registered in England as a company imited by guarantee on
30® April 1914 The Diocesan Boards of Finance Measure 1925 provided that every Diocese in the Church
of England should have a Diocesan Board of Finance It stipulated however that those Dioceses with
existing trust bodies (provided they were incorporated under the Companies Acts) were allowed to use
these bodies to carry out the functions of the Boards of Finance Clause 3(c) of the Memorandum of
Association of the LDF (company number 150856) formed in 1918 specifically empowers the LDF to carry
out (inter ala) all of the functions of the London Diocesan Board of Finance The Articles of Association of
the London Diocesan Board of Finance were amended on 7% June 1926 to amalgamate the functions of the
Board of Finance into the LDF, except anything which was unable to be amalgamated because of statutory
provisions The LDBF i1s a registered chanity (249022) and company imited by guarantee (135519)

Principal activities

The principal activity of the LDF 1s to serve and support the parishes and people within the Diocese in
their mission of proclaiming the gospel of Jesus Christ It does this operationally through the payment and
housing of parish clergy and chaplaincies and support to their ministry The LDF also provides community
space and facihties to the wider population of London and to visitors to the aity.

Ministry and associated costs, including property, therefore account for the great majority of the LDF's
ongoing expenditure This 1s financed principally via the collection of voluntary income from the parishes,
termed “Common Fund” This 1s supplemented by rental and investment income

Grants are recewved from a number of sources including the Church Commussioners and the Trust for
London Grants are awarded to parishes by the Area Councils and to mission initiatives by the Bishop of
London's Mission Fund (BLMF) which 1s a designated fund within the LDF.

Public Benefit of activities

The trustees have a statutory duty under the Charities Act 201 | to have regard to the guidance 1ssued
from ume to ume by the Charity Commission The trustees have read the Charity Commission guidance
Charrtres and Public Benefit and the supplementary guidance in The Advancement of Religion for the Public
Benefit and have had regard to it iIn making relevant decisions

The trustees believe that this report taken as a whole provides evidence of the public benefit of the
charity’s work in 201 |

In particular, the trustees believe that, by promoting the work of the Church of England in the Diocese of
London, the LDF helps to promote the whole mission of the Church, including 1ts pastoral, evangelistic,
soctal and ecumenical aspects, more effectively, both in the Diocese as a whole and in its individual parishes
and that in doing so 1t provides a benefit to the public by

w providing facilities for public worship, pastoral care and spiritual, moral and intellectual
development, both for its adherents and for anyone who wishes to benefit from what the Church
offers, and

« promoting Christian values, and services by members of the Church in and to their communities,
to the benefit of individuals and society as a whole

The principal public benefits of the LDF are the advancement of the Christian religion by supporting
ministers of religion and others who lead, encourage and support members of the various and diverse
communities of the world city of London by and in
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the prowvision of public rituals and ceremonies (see below “sharing the good news of Jesus Christ In
21st century London™ as part of The London Challenge 2012),

# the cure of souls and the moral and spirtual improvement of the public (see “sharing the good
news of Jesus Christ in 21st century London),

# the provision of comfort to the bereaved (see “expressing God’s love in our World City™),

¥ contributing towards a better society, by promoting socal cohesion and social capital, for example
by supportng matrimony (see “sharing the good news of Jesus Christ in 215t century London™),

» contributing to the spiritual and moral education of children (see for example “telling the story of
Jesus Christ afresh for this generation and especially for the young™),

% carrying out, as a practical expression of religious beliefs, other acuvities (such as advancing
education or conflict resolution, or relieving poverty), which may also be charitable (see for
example “serving London and all her people™),

% contributing to good mental and physical health, aiding the prevention of Ill health, speeding
recovery in i} health {see “sharing the good news of Jesus Christ in 21 st century Londoen™),

® the prowvision and maintenance of sacred spaces, principally churches and churchyards, open to the
public and many of which are listed bulldings (see “serving London and all her people™};

w the provision of public spaces such as church halls as an expression of faith (see “serving London
and all her people™).

The Five Year Strategic Plan - The London Challenge 2012

The London Challenge (LC), which was first launched in January 2002, focused the London Diocese on
some common strategic objectives for the five years fimishing in December 2006 The London Challenge
was refreshed with clear objectives for the period 2007-2012 During 2012 as a Diocese we will be
developing the next London Challenge

The London Challenge 2012 sets cut seven commitments |t 1s based on Revelation 21, creating a “holy
city, the new Jerusalem”. Each commitment has greater detail, which 1s available on the Diocesan web site

at www london anglican org

The Seven London Challenge 2012 Commitments are:
i We are commutted to sharing the good news of Jesus Christ in 2% century London

2 We are committed to equipping the servants of Jesus Christ
3 We are committed to telling the story of Jesus Christ afresh for this generation and especially for
the young
4 We are committed to serving London and all her people
5 We are committed to expressing God’s love in our World City
6 We are committed to making four Capital Investments
e recruit and train 2,012 Ambassadors for Jesus Christ under the age of 35 by 2012
* Increase provision in Church of England Secondary Schools by 2,012 places by 2012
o raise £2,012,000 for development in Africa by 2012 (ALMA)
L ]

raise £2,012,000 to support mission in London by 2012.

10
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7 We are committed to generating the resources in finance and property to enable the church to
respond adequately to the London Challenge

Performance

l. We are committed to sharing the good news of Jesus Christ in 215t century London.

The Diocese supports over 500 worshipping communities There are zlso over |50 chaplaincies in schools,
colleges, hosprtals, the Metropolitan Police, railways, the Olympics, prisons, theatres, the forces, football
clubs, Canary Wharf, livery companies, shops and City institutions

Electoral Roll numbers in the Diocese of London have been growing year on year and now stand at over
70,000 up from ¢ 63,000 1n 2007

2. We are committed to equipping the servants of Jesus Christ.

The LDF 1s committed to maintaining and developing high standards in clergy and lay training and
development Over £2m of the Fund’s resources i1s invested in the vocational discernment and training of
new clergy (there are currently 120 London Diocesan sponsored ordinands), in the continuing professional
development of some 700 supendiary and self supporting clergy, and in the education, training, support and
development of many hundreds of licensed and commissioned lay ministers and congregation members on
their journey in Christian farth

In 201 | the Renewing Vision, Renewing Ministry Residential Programme became an established area of
professional development offered to clergy approaching the latter stages of minusterial life, to encourage
them to engage with their strengths for fruitful and renewed ministry This programme 1s now being shared
and developed with other dioceses

Equipping and training curates and their training incumbents continued to be high on the LDF’s agenda with
a number of new initiatives developing to enhance the traiming experience, at a diocesan level over 100
curates attended a successful triennial residential conference, and Area initiatives have included developing
specialist knowledge with curates and working with training incumbents on skills-based 1ssues.

11
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Woerking with the Building on History The Church in London project, we have developed a History Audit
toollat which we are piloting with a number of parishes as a key tool in Mission Action Planning

BUILDING ON HISTORY THE CHURCH IN LONDON

Maintaining the Church of
. England's identity

Watch this video on the Bwilding on History Project on 1Tunes U

or visit this website to find cut more www open ac uk/Arts/building-on-history-project/

In 201 | we pubhshed a report called ‘Another Capital Idea’ to re-examine the themes of the 2003 report
A Capital idea, which noted exceptional church growth within the diocese Ve have been loolang for
more ways to use data to help our churches to flourish

The report updates the progress and patterns of growth up to 2010 and makes further suggestions for the
future growth and flourishing of the churches.

The report can be downloaded from our website http //www london anglican org/Capitalldea

12
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Investment in buildings and support of churches has taken place across London  This has included the re-
opening of a church closed for public worship in the 1990s in Kentish Town See below the before and
after photos

13
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3. We are committed to telling the story of Jesus Christ afresh for this generation and
especially for the young.

in 2011 the Diocese launched the London Diocese Children’s Charter; a scheme designed to help parishes
become more welcoming places to children Through the year 33 parishes have signed up which compares
very favourably with similar schemes in other Dioceses and denominations

Tl . :
"~ London Diocese
Children’s Charter

Children at St John at Hampstead receiving their Children’s Charter sign

For Easter with funding from the LDF, Sam Donoghue (Diocesan Children's Mimistry Adviser) in
partnership with New Wine Kids and the London Diocesan Board for Schools (LDBS) produced a pack of
resources which was given away to every church schoo! and parish church in the Diocese It contained a
range of original media resources and assemblies to help communicate the message of Easter

14
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4. We are committed to serving London and all her people.

We continue to work to ensure that we remain present in all our communities — particularly amongst the
poor 2011 saw the continuation of support through the work of Community Ministry and the deployment
of community development workers to areas of need. The approach taken in 201 | of partnering with
other agencies has seen the successful joint funding of community development workers and the drawing In
of significant external capital and revenue to pursue the objectives of parishes in some of the most
deprived areas of London. Churches that are doing more to meet the local needs are much more hkely to
grow than churches that see local needs but are not responding 201 | saw a significant number of
developments to ensure that the resources given by past generations and the Common Fund are best

used

In particular the work of Strategic Development has been directed by the Diocesan Strategic Pohcy
Committee to enable both a local and strategic response to the identified areas for investment The
Strategic Development analysis and mapping has been identified by government and General Synod as a
method and approach that others should follow. 20( 1 saw the development of the vision for mission and
ministry at Tottenham Hale with local parishes partnering with external mission agencies to create an
exciung and vibrant new church at the heart of this large community Particular success was had at the high
profile launch of the Tottenham Hale work at the House of Lords where government and partners’
attitudes to the church were re-cast in a positive light 201 | saw the development not only of the vision,
but of a detailed business plan for implementung 1t which allowed for mission work to begin on site Work
has been undertaken at three other areas of significant development change, Cricklewood, King's Cross,
and Earls Court, with support and guidance being given to areas of smaller but stll significant development

The strategic approach has also enabled significant matched funding from external agencies to be secured
to enable local mission and ministry initiatives These have been supported by strategically estabhshed
partnerships with external agencies which provide skills and staffing not otherwise avaifable to parishes
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The need for us to serve London and all her people was highlighted in August which saw the worst riots In
London since the 1980s with parishes again demonstrating their commitment, love and service to their
communities The parish system and the system of Common Fund which supports ministry in all places was
the basis for significant work during and after the riots By the year end the Emergency4London fund had
raised £54,000 to help parishes to reach out to young people at risk of being caught up in gang culture. 14
local youth projects in Tottenham, Ealing and Hackney received the funds

Fr Rob Wickham, Rector, St John at Hackney:

“We followed behind the police line and offered a prayer walk and the police said yes to that. Bishop
Adnan [the Rt Revd Adrian Newman, Bishop of Stepney] joined me and by 6pm we thought it was all over
but we could see billows of black smoke and realised the road behind the rectory was now where the
trouble was

At 10pm we found out that a woman in her 70s was in one of the flashpeints and had broken her hip The pohce
had formed a group protecting her The protestors didn’t realise The polce said "tell them what we’re doing” so
there was this bizarre moment where the Bishop and | wandered up to the rioting protestors and said, "let’s get this
woman in the ambulance "

“We decided to mark exactly one week dafter the riots so we cleared the road to have a street party and do
afternoon tea for 400 people | asked jason, the manager of Marks and Spencer, if they could help and he said yes
Lots of the local community were there We got the tenants and residents to come out in force Children were
standing in the street drawing chalk pictures on to a road that had been strewn with glass It was deeply profound;
absolutely stunning

On 11 August, Bishop Richard wrote:

"l am immensely proud of the response of the church which has played a large part in reclaiming the streets for the
overwhelming majority of responsible ciizens by prayer vigils and public demonstrations of solidarity with other
Chnistians and community groups "
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5. We are committed to expressing God's love in our World City.

Work has been undertaken this year to understand better how to support parishes in demonstrating
God's love In the communities of this World City Two parucular strands of work stand out

The first is the survey of what parishes are doing to express that love through service, in short, what we
are doing for and with our communities The last bme we did this three years ago we found we had over
650 community focused projects that were actively expressing God's love Our current work 1s showing
that this commitment has continued through the recession (with over 700 projects at work now), and
analysis 1s being carried out to show us how we can best support local responses through strategic
resourcing

The second strand saw the pilot of ‘Project Catalyst’, with grants and support being successfully deployed
through partnership with external funders Projects are being enabled to unlock potential in parishes and
consequently mission and ministry across the Diocese, and as a result further funding has been set aside by
partners to allow a main programme to be developed

The LDF supports the Diocese in ". implementing the Church of England policy on shrinking its
environmental footprint and playing its full part in the debate on ecological matters " The previcusly
reported carbon saving of | | 4% from 2005-2008 has reduced to 3.5% from 2005 to 2009, whilst there was
exceptional cold weather during 2009 (counter to the global trend)

Sixty one churches are taking part in Energy-saving Benchmarking There 1s also a drive to install solar
panels and take advantage of the new feed-in tanff (solar panels are now operating at five churches). Home
energy surveys have been carried out for 289 residential propertues (60%) Environmental work was
presented to a Diocesan Syned meeting where a new Diocesan Environmental Policy was adopted.

6. We are committed to making four Capital Investments: recruit and train 2,012
Ambassadors for Jesus Christ under the age of 35 by 2012; increase provision in
Church of England Secondary Schools by 2,012 places by 2012; raise £2,012,000 for
development in Africa by 2012 (ALMA); and raise £2,012,000 to support mission in
London by 2012,

Recruit and train 2,012 Ambassadors for Jesus Christ under the age of 35 by 2012:

The2012 1s an mitiative of the Diocese of London to train, encourage, and release over twe thousand
Christians in the 13-35 age range, as they seek to live and share the Gospel at this defining moment for our
capital city We already have over 2,500 signed up and taking part

@ www.the2012.org.uk
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increase provision in Church of England Secondary Schools by 2,012 places by 2012:

We substantially exceeded the London Challenge target to increase places by 2012. Within our Church of
England schools within the Diocese, places have increased by a total of 4,649 over the last four years The
London Diocesan Board for Schools (LDBS), a separate company and chanity, supperts not only the 148
schools which the Diocese sponsors but also a number of community schools

LDBS continues to work with Local Authorities and parishes in providing additional school places to meet
the growing population of London, m partcular two parishes, St George’s, Freezywater and St john's,
Dysons Road in Enfield made space available in December 201 | to accommodate children who were
without school places The LDBS has also supported St Luke's Church in Hampstead to open the first
Church of England School under the Government’s Free Schools programme and has recently been
successful in winning a bid to open a new secondary school In Greenford in September 2013

Diocese of London 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Pupils in C of E 46,723 47,157 47,873 50,014 51,372
schools
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Raise £2,012,000 for development in Africa by 2012 (ALMA):

Churches in the London Diocese have consistently given over £5m per year to charity (since 2007) Many
of them choose to split these donations between local, navonal and international charities Many have
special inks with communities in Africa In 2010 total donatons to charities from London Diocese
churches were £5.Im

ALMA 15 the partnership between the Anglican Church in Angola, London and Mozambique ALMA's Lent
appeal 201 | raised £50,516 (2010 £61,077)

i

pr

Clergy of Cobue district Padres Samuel, Jonathan, Archdeacon Nselela, and Chimunji

Raise £2,012,000 to support mission in London by 2012:

This objective has not been achieved In order to accelerate our progress in raising money for the Bishop
of London’s Mission Fund a fundraiser has now been appointed to initiate a patrons programme for this
fund

7. We are commiitted to generating the resources in finance and property to enable
the church to respond adequately to the London Challenge.

The London Challenge includes a commitment toe maintaining a balanced General Fund budget and high
standards of maintenance for the LDF's buildings, many of which are of architectural and historical
importance In 201 | the LDF generated a surplus on its General Fund of £0 7m (before exceptional items)
which 1s above the definition of a balanced budget (exceptional items including pension fund deficit costs
resulted in a deficit overall). A balanced budget i1s planned for 2012 though current economic conditions
are hikely to make its delivery challenging

In 201t a short film was made to explain how the Common Fund system supports the work of the whole
diocese A short version of the film (which is available on DVD) can be found on our website
http //www london anglican org/Common-Fund Feedback on the film has been extremely positive and it
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has been a key form of communication for anyone new to the diocese, whether trustee, volunteer,
congregation members, new clergy or visitors

Priorities for the final year of the current London Challenge 2012

To focus our effort over the final months of the LC, senior staff have reset priority work areas, as follows

I. We are committed to sharing the good news of Jesus Christ in 215 century London.
We will increase momentum in Church planting and learn from experience to date

2. We are committed to equipping the servants of Jesus Christ.

2012 will see a number of exciting new developments coming to fruition, culminating in a first Study
Summit, bringing together all the Diocese’s licensed clergy (around 700) exploring the theology
underpinming ministering in a World City, with key note speakers including the Archbishop of Canterbury
and Dr Tim Keller.

In 2012 we will be seeking to develop further initatives in Christian Leadership, developing the pilot work
of the Riverside Leadership Forum and working with 5t Mellitus College

201 | saw pilot work on initiatives to explore interim ministry in parishes in vacancy, this pilot work 1s
being extended in 2012 to equip experienced clergy to work with parishes during a vacancy in addressing
issues affecting mission and ministry

We will also be developing extensively the Diocesan on-line resources for training and development.
Bullding on the new Licensed Lay Mimistry traming scheme developed in partnership with St Mellitus
College we are reviewing the ways in which we support and develop Licensed and Commussioned Lay
Ministers In the Diocese, and will be introducing a new Mimisterial Development Review schema for Lay
Ministers

Overall, 2012 will see more work to develop the support, traning, education and equipping of the servants
of Jesus Christ in the Diocese of this World City

3. We are committed to telling the story of Jesus Christ afresh for this generation and
especially for the young

We will work to further exploit mission opportunity for growth of church schools and improve

church/school links

4. We are committed to serving London and all her people.
We will continue and develop our mission planning in areas of major change — idenufied as Tottenham
Hale, Earls Court, King's Cross and Cricklewood

5. We are committed to expressing God’s love in our Worid City,
Efforts will be redoubled to achieve the target of 20 12% carbon savings by 2012

6. We are committed to making four Capital Investments:
® Recruit and tramn 2,012 Ambassadors for Jesus Christ under the age of 35 by 2012

London Calling held on 24 April 2012 was the worship and commussioning event for the2012, hosted by
the Bishop of London at St Paul’s Cathedral
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Members of the2012 will have the opportunity (if they wish) to serve on a variety of mission and service
projects surrounding the Olympics, Paralympics and beyond These mission opportunities will be
coordinated with More Than Gold and the Diocesan Olympic Mobihser Examples range from simple acts
of service such as giving out free cups of water to spectators; to week-long commitments serving in parish
holiday clubs for sports outreach to children.

e Raise £2,012,000 to support mission in London by 2012
As noted earlier, a fundraiser has been appointed to inruate a patrons programme for this fund

7. We are committed to generating the resources in finance and property to enable the
church to respond adequately to the London Challenge

We will review our financial strategy, including the pattern of support to struggling parishes A review 1s

taking place of the work of the property team building on the successful increase in net property income

from investments from £2 3m in 2006 to £3 6m n 201 |

Financial performance — ‘The Business Review’

Section 417 of the Companies Act 2006 requires every company to prepare a ‘business review’ The
purpose of the business review 1s to infform members of the company and help them assess how the
directors have performed their duty under section |72 (duty to promote the success of the company)

In the case of the LDF the members and directors are the same individuals This section 1s intended, when
taken with the other sections of this report, to satusfy the requirements of the law and to provide useful
information for readers of these accounts It also takes account of the statement of best practice Reporting
Statement. Operating and Financial Review 1ssued by the Accounting Standards Board in jJanuary 2006 and
various regulations made through statutory instrument

General Fund

The LDF recorded an operating surplus on the General Fund of £0 7m This compares to the deficit of
around £0 2m in 2010

Compared to 2010
t  lncoming resources increased by £1 9m to £31 6m (2010 £29 7m)
0 Resources expended increased by £1 Om to £30 9m (2010 £29 9m)

Donations from panshes through Commeon Fund increased by 4 6% or £0 9m to £20 3m Incoming
resources from other donations and from property remained approximately the same as in 2010 The
trustees are very grateful to all the donors

Returns on cash in the banks and from shares increased by £0 3m primarily due to the transfer of around
£6m of cash into higher iIncome-generating equities and bonds at the beginning of the year, although bank
interest rates continued at historically low levels of around 0 5%-0 7%

There was an increase in the number of clergy sponsored directly by parishes and others and their financial
contributions are shown as income, ‘stipend refunds’, In these accounts These increased to £3 Om
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Resources expended rose with increases in total clergy stipend costs and pension contributions combining
with increases in funds spent on clergy housing and grants made to parishes

Contnibutions to the Archbishops’ Council (part of the NCls) remained steady at £2.0m. The major part of
these donations funds the training of new clergy

Other general fund expenditure was very tightly controlled throughout the year and econonmies were
achieved against budget in many departments

Overall, the careful control of expenditure enabled the LDF to achieve an operatng surplus on the General
Fund of £0 7m in 201 | despite high inflationary pressures

Taking the surplus of £0 7m, 2 pension deficit provision of (£1 2m), some transfers out of (£0.Im)} and the
(£0 4m) unrealised loss on investments all into account, the overall deficit on the LDF's General Fund for
2011 1s (£1 Om)

Qur current London Challenge commitment is to balance the General Fund to within 0 5% of the LDF's
General Fund income. In 2011 the operating surplus of £0 7m, before the exceptional items noted above, s
marginally above the defimiuon normally used to indicate a ‘balanced budget’

Total Funds (General Fund, Designated, Restricted and Endowment Funds together)
An aggregate ‘operating’ deficit across all funds of £2 9m (£4 3m in 2010} was recorded during the year

Overall incoming resources increased by £1 ém or 5% from £31.4m in 2010 to £33 O0m 1in 201 | mainly
because of the continuing generosity of the thousands of people in the parishes who support the LDF's
wark Overall resources expended increased by £0 2m or 0 6% from £35 7m 1n 2010 to £35 9m in 201 |

During the year, the property team continued to manage the LDF's properties to provide the best possible
service to clergy and maximise the revenue from investment property and from functional property that
was temporarily not in operational use.

For some designated and restricted funds, expenditure exceeded income as these funds were spent for the
furtherance of the ministry and mussion of the church in London and providing benefit to the people of the

cy.

Some of the support was given to individual projects and individual clergy, notably via the Bishop of
London’s Mission Fund, other support took the form of provision of housing and other facilities for clergy,
and some tock the form of loans and grants to parochal church councils and church schools More details
of these activities are in the notes to the accounts and further information 1s available in the annual report
to parishes and on the website

There were net other recognised gains of £14 9m (2010 £1 7m), principally due to Increases in property
valuations and realised gains on property of £16 2m (2010 £10 ém), though this was offset by a decrease in
investment valuations of £1 3m (2010 increase of £1 Im) due to capital value deterioration on the stock
market
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There was a significant net cash outflow mainly because a deciston was implemented 1n 2011 to transfer in
excess of £6m of cash into listed equities and bonds Gains of £2 ém (2010 £1 7m) were reahsed on
disposal of property Depreciation of £2 9m (2010 £2.6m) was charged in the year

There was, therefore, an increase in assets of £108m (2010 £7 4m) for the year to £363 9m (£353 Im in
2010) The substantial majonity of this is represented by property used in the LDF's charitable operations

The budget and outlook for 2012 - The budget for 2012 was approved by the Bishop's Council and
received by the Diocesan Synod in November 201 | It budgets for General Fund income to increase by
£0 9m and Common Fund up to £20.5m, General Fund expenditure 1s forecast to increase by £1 Im; with
a 2 5% increase in stipends in 2012, and more funds available to help strugghng parishes and indrviduals

Income Budget 2012

Common Fund
74%

Historic income
3% Net rents

Assigned Fees Grantsand 11%
2% donations Investment
6% Income 4%

Expenditure Budget 2012

Stipends
55%

CWPS Deficit

1% Parsonages

Other Diocesan 18%

Support

8% National Church

Parish and Area . Professional 7%
Chaplaincies,

Support Ministry
pp Education and .
4% Supporting 1%
Outreach
3% Ordinands

3%
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Companies Act 2006 requires the directors to disclose the principal risks and uncertamnties facing the
company The LDF's process for managing these risks and uncertainties is described in an earlier section
Active programmes are in place to mitugate each identified principal risk

The main risks to the LDF's income are that parishes will not be able to donate as generously as they have
pledged or would wish A one percent decrease in Common Fund contributions would mean a reduction
in income of about £0 2m The general economic environment makes this more lkely than was the case
through much of the last decade

The principal rsks on expenditure are that there may be additional pension deficits to be funded, the costs
of traiming ordinands may rise further, there may be unanticipated property mantenance expenditure,
council or other taxes may rise more than expected; or there may be unantictpated expenditure.

Under the Ecclesiastical Offices (Terms of Service) Measure the Fund is legally hable for the payment of
clergy stipends not less than the National Minimum Supend {or pro rata if part time} for those posts under
Common Tenure In contrast the LDF's principal iIncome stream, contributions from parishes, 1s a matter
of generosity and shared goals for ministry but is not legally enforceable.

Other identified major risks include that it may be not possible to insure adequately churches no longer

used for regular public worship, the risk of flooding may tncrease significantly due to climate change and

insurance premia will rise in response, hostile news media reperts may adversely impact the work of the
LDF; and safeguarding procedures for children and vulnerable adults may prove inadequate

The LDF's management will keep the nsks under review and ensure that proportionate mitigation
strategies are In place
Plans for Future Periods

We aim to keep the day by day income and expenditure of the LDF in balance while using designated and
restricted funds for the purposes for which they are held 2012 1s the ninth year in a row when we have
set a balanced budget for General Funds

The challenge for the future 15 to

~  Deliver ministry and services in more effective ways, being at all times innovative,
® Grow and steward our resources

During 2012 we will continue to fulfil the commitments of the London Challenge 2007-2012 We will also
begin to develop a new strategic framework for use in the Diocese of London for the period 2013-2020
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Policies and other matters
Investment Policy

The LDF holds investments on 1ts own behalf and as Ecclesiastical Custodian Trustee for parishes under
the Parochial Church Councils {(Powers) Measure 1956

The LDF keeps investments under its control under regular review and receives periodic gurdance from an
Investment Advisory Group which comprises investment expertise and from the Property Advisory Group
The main investment objective 1s to seek the maximum return over the long term, taking into account both
income and capital appreciation, with minimum risk to the real value of the assets Targets set for the
strategic allocation of assets between different classes of investment reflect the Trustees’ views on the
appropriate balance to be struck between returns and risks

The LDF currently operates asset allocation objectives that differ between types of fund Broadly, they are
based upon bands for property and equity that encompass around 80% of assets with cash and bonds
forming around 20% Redistribution between asset types to meet these objectives took place in the first
half of 201 1 with a further £6 5m placed with histed equities and bonds from cash

Reserves Policy and Designated Funds

A review of designated reserves was again undertaken during the year The policy will be kept under
regular review n the light of changing financial market conditions, which affect both the resources available
and the calls upon them

General reserves are held specifically to finance working capital requirements to the extent that
expenditure (principally stipends, salaries and property costs) is not matched by simultaneous receipt of
Common Fund and investment income Funds are held in iquid deposits paying commercial rates of
interest The policy 1s that general reserves equivalent to approximately one month's expenditure should
be held in cash or near cash form for this purpose General reserves at 3 Ist December 2011 were £1 3m
(2010 £2 3m) These equate to about |5 days of general fund expenditure (2010 29 days) The sharp
reduction s primarily due to the £1 2m of pension deficit costs provided for in 2011 The trustees intend
to replenish these general reserves over the next 5 years through the careful setting of annual budgets

Funds with a value of £86 Bm (2010 £82 8m) have been designated for particular purposes as described
more fully in Note |2a to the financial statements

Over half of this value, £48 2m (2010 £44 5m), 1s represented by functional property and the associated
parsonage and fund property reserves, which are used to house clergy in support of one of the principal
charitable objectives of the LDF As described in the notes to the financial statements, most clergy housing
1s not owned by the LDF but 1s nevertheless recognised in the accounts in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard no 5

About one third of these funds, £27 2m (2010 £26 6m) is represented by investment property which 1s
discussed below

Some of these funds have been designated to enable loans to be made to further the charitable aims of the
LDF The value of the funds will continue without materal change as loans are made and repaid The

25




THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Directers” and Trustees” Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Diocesan Loan Capital designated fund of £4.4m (2010 £4 2m) 1s the major example. It I1s used mainly to
provide loans to parishes, often to enable them to undertake major capital projects that would otherwise
not be able to proceed

The remainder of the designated funds, with a value of £7 0m (2010 £7 5m), 1s designated for various
particular purposes, especially enabling the LDF to evolve and take advantage of strategic development
opportunities Many of these funds are gradually being exhausted as they are spent for the purposes for
which they were designated Some of these funds may be expected to be replerished over time by further
donations and designations

Policy on Property Investments of Unrestricted but Designated Funds

Unrestricted but designated property investments, amountng to £27 2m (2010: £26 6m) of the amounts
discussed above, are held for two principal reasons

One reason I1s to reduce the risks posed by large changes in the environment in which the LDF operates
and to protect the LDF from insolvency or serious disruption to its work The LDF needs to balance the
risk between the short term nature of income and the long term conunuing needs of clergy

Clergy are office holders and are not employed by the LDF Stipends are paid by the National Church
Insuitutions, which look to the LDF to recompense them for the clergy in the Diocese. Clergy are entitled
to receive a basic supend and, in practice, receive an enhanced stipend This enutlement for many
incumbents continues until they reach the age of seventy For some, it 1s a lifetme entitlement Some clergy
have an expectation that they will continue to receive the enhanced stipend for as long as their entitlement
to supend continues This represents a long term moral, but not legal, obligation for the LDF On the

other hand, the LDF's income consists mainly of voluntary donations by parishioners through thew PCCs

If there was, for any reason, a major decline in parishioners’ giving to the Church, the LDF might be left
with a major imbalance between income and expenditure If Common Fund income were to fall by a half,
selling the unrestricted investments would make up the shortfall for between two and three years

With the implementation of the Ecclesiastical Offices (Terms of Service) Measure 2009 (2009 no |) and
regulations made under section 2 of that measure, office holders holding a stipendiary post are now
entitled to receive a stipend not less than the National Mimimum Stipend The Measure and Regulations
were implemented on 31 January 201 |

The second reason for holding the designated investments Is to ensure an equitable balance of expenditure
between generations Many of the assets used by the LDF today were provided by past generations and
there 1s a need to provide assets for future generations

All assets, except operational properues used mainly for housing panish clergy, are invested with the aim of
producing iIncome to support the LDF's charitable work.

Restricted Funds

Funds with a value of £20 0m (2010. £20.5m) were restricted in their application in accordance with
conditions specified by the donors They are described more fully in Note 12b to the financial statements
Glebe assets are regarded as restricted expendable endowment funds
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Investment returns

Investment property with a net book value of £81.5m (2010 £79 9m) generated income of £40m (2010.
£3 6m)

Investments In equities, fixed interest securities and other quoted securities amounted to £21 3m (2010.
£16 0m) These include scle trusts, and details are in Note 7 to the financial statements. Losses in value of
£1 2m (2010 Gains of £1 Im) were recorded and dividends of £1 Om (2010 £08m) were received The
loss In value of investments in shares, which are held through investment funds, was broadly in ine with
the movement In the value of FTSE all-share index

Valuation of real property assets

The majority of the real property assets are held for the long term use of the LDF, rather than for re-sale,
and are valued in the accounts at ‘insurance value' which reflects the replacement cost The market value
of the property might differ substantially from its insurance value In the directors’ and trustees’ opinion,
gven the intention to hold the properties in the long term and taking account of paragraph 2(1) of
Schedule 7 to The Large and Medium Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008, the difference 1s not of such significance as to require the attention of the members of the company
to be drawn to it and this report therefore does not indicate the difference with such degree of precision

Pension Schemes

From | January 2011 the Church of England Clergy Pension Scheme changed to being contracted into the
Second State Pension This change means that both the LDF and clergy will pay greater National Insurance
contributions, at the same time, this change helps the Pensions Board to reduce the contribution rate

The Pensions Board, taking into account the revised legislation and scheme, reduced the contribution rate
to 38 2% from 45% on |st January 2011

During 201 | the LDF were notified of their share of the deficit on the Church Workers Pension Scheme
(for lay staff), together with the expected future service contributions required if no changes are made to
the scheme going forward A provision for the LDF’s share of the deficit, of £1 2m, was included in the
accounts for 201 |

Other Matters

Attention 1s drawn to Note 9b of the financial statements which details the LDF's support of connected
charities, for example in the form of grant funding given of £160k (2010. £150k}) to the London Drocesan
Board for Schools and with reference to other support in respect of accommaodaton and office support
This 15 to ensure that the Diocese of London both fulfils i1ts statutory education responsibilities and its
desire that the Gospel of Christ Is also spread through educational ministry

One of the main ways in which the LDF supports the ministry of parishes is through the provision of grants
and loans In 2011, grants to London parishes totalled £1,781k (2010. £1,593k)
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Members and Members’ Interests

The LDF 1s a charitable company limited by guarantee and its directors and trustees may derive no benefit,
mcome or capital interest in the LDF's financial affairs other than reimbursement of out of pocket
expenses Note 9b to the financial statements shows expenses reimbursed to Council members For
information this note also shows the amounts paid to the clerical members of Council for their stipend
This 1s paid to them as Ministers of Religion in the Diocese rather than as Directors or Trustees

The Synodical Secretary mantamns a register of declarations of interest. All trustees have access to 1t

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each Trustee who held office at the date of approval of this trustees’ report confirms that, so far as he or
she 1s each aware, there is no relevant audit mformation of which the LDF's auditors are unaware, and that
he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself
or herself aware of any relevant audit infformatron and to establish that the LDF's auditors are aware of
that information ‘Relevant audit informauon’ means information needed by the LDF's auditors in
connection with preparing thewr report. In doing so, the trustees have made enquiries of their fellow
directors and of the LDF's auditors, and have taken such other steps (if any) for that purpose, as are
required by their duty as a director of the LDF to exercise reasonable care, skill and diligence

Trusts

The Council has adopted a programme of work encompassing risk and investment management reviews of
all trust holdings Trusts with small balances, typically less than £10,000, are gradually being closed as
permitted under Chanty Commussion guidelines and following consultation with beneficiaries The capital
funds are remitted to the designated beneficiaries to be used in accordance with the terms of the trust

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others

As noted on page 52 the LDF s custodian trustee for trust assets of £158m (2010 £18.9m) Detailed
ceruficates of holdings were sent to panishes and other managing trustees as at 31 December 201 |

Most of these trusts are held on behalf of parishes whose charitable purposes are parallel to those of the
LDF Assets held under these trusts are held separately from those of the LDF

A statement of the custodian trustees’ responsibilities 1s also found on page 52 together with non-statutory
financial statements, notes thereto and a non-statutory independent auditors’ report to the custodian
trustees between pages 52 and 56 Because of the large number of such trusts they are not listed

separately
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Statement of trustees’ and directors' responsibilities in respect of the
Trustees’ Annual Report and the Financial Statements

The trustees are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Annual Report and the financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and regulations Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial
statements for each financial year in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) The financial statements are required by law to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of any excess of expenditure over income for
that period

In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to

® select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

» make jJudgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

x state whether apphicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenrial
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

% prepare the financial statements on the ‘going concern’ basis unless it 1s Inappropriate to presume
that the group and the charity will continue In its activities

The trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that its financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as
are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the charitable company and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregulanities

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial stat€ments may differ from legislation in other junisdictions

W \

The Ven Dr W Macob — 14 May 2012

Member of Bishop’s Council and Finance Committee Chairman
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Directors” and Trustees” Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Independent auditor’s report to the members of the London Diocesan
Fund

We have audited the financial statements of the London Diocesan Fund for the year ended 31 December
2011 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Summary income and Expenditure account,
the Balance Sheet, the note of Historical Cost Profits and Losses, the Cash Flow Statement and the related
notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 15 applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditors

As explained more fully in the Trustees’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 29, the trustees (who
are also the directors of the charity for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors This report 1s made
solely to the chanty’'s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part |6 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charity’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charity and the
chanity’s members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's web-site at
www.frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on the financial statements
In our opimon the finanaal statements

¢ give a true and fair view of the state of the charity’s affairs as at 3|1 December 201 | and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year
then ended,

® have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
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Qpinion on the other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ and Trustees’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared i1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Compames Act 2006 requires us
to report to you If, in our opinion”

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

» certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

¢ we have not received all the infformation and explanations we require for our audit.

Alistair Fraser (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

Times House, Throwley Way, Sutton, Surrey SMI1 4]Q

14 May 2012
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THE LONDCN DIOCESAN FUND

Statement of Financial Activities - for the year to 31 December 2011

Unrestricted funds Restricted Endowment Total Total
General Designated Funds Funds 1011 w10
m im im £m im &m
Incoming Resources Notes
Incoming Resources from generated funds
Voluntary income
Commeon Fund 203 - - - 03 194
Donanons 05 - 03 - 08 12
Church Comnussioners - 03 02 - 05 07
Trust for London 12 - - - 12 12
Supend refunds 30 - - - 0 28
Actvitses for peneraung funds
Funcucnal Property Rentals 12 ot - - 13 11
Asstgned Fees 05 - - - 05 04
investment Income
Dwidends and Interest Recervable 10b 10 - 02 - 12 09
Investment Property Rentals 39 - ol - 40 3
Other Incoming Resources . 02 - - 02 al
Total Incoming Resources 316 04 08 - 30 314
Resources Expended
Cost of generating funds
investment management costs
Renta! portfolio costs - agent fees 04 - - - 04 03
Investment Property repairs & mantenance 10 - 02 - 12 10
Charitable activities
Mimistry 197 0l ol - 199 198
Educaticn & Outreach 06 - - - 06 0é
Parith and Area Support Services I - 02 - 13 14
Clergy Housing & Care of Churches 56 09 - 18 83 84
Nauvenal Church 20 - - - 20 21
Grants to Panshes & Overseas 5 013 08 09 - 20 17
Governance 02 - - - 02 03
Other resources expended - - - - - ol
Total Resources Expended 4 309 18 14 18 359 357
Net (outgoing) resources for year 07 {(12) (0 &) (1 8) 9 {43)
before transfers and pension deficit costs
Pension Deficit costs (12) . - - (2 -
Met {outgoing) resources for year @5) (r2) ©e) (18 “n 4))
after pension deficit costs and before transfers
Transfers between funds 12d Qn 09 [(«H}] {07) - -
Net {outgoing) resources for year (0 &) 03 [ )] (25) 41) {41)
after transfers
Other recognised gains and losses
Unreahsed (lasses) / gains on investment assets 7 (C4) 02 ©2) ©5) [{)] 1
Unreahsed gains on property assecs 6 - 25 03 108 136 a9
Realised gains on property assets - 20 [+ 3] 05 26 17
Net Gans {0 4) 43 02 108 149 1"z
Net movement in funds for the year (19 40 (05) 83 108 T4
Bahinces at | January 2010 23 828 205 2475 3531 3457
Balances at 31 December 2011 13 858 200 2558 3639 3531

All incorung 2nd expended resources relate to continuing operaucns
There 15 no difference between the net incoming resources for the financial year and their historwaal cost equivalent.

The notes on pages 36 to 50 form part of these financial statements
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Batance Sheet - as at 3| December 2011

Notes
Fixed Assets
Funcuonal Property ]
Investment Property 6
Fuctures, Fitungs and Equipment
Investments 7
Current Assets
Debtors 9
Cash and short term deposits 10a

Creditors:
Amounts falling due within one year

Net Current Assets

Total assets less current habilities

Creditors
Amounts falling due after one year

Net Assets

Funds
General
Designated
Restricted
Endowment
Total Funds

12b
12¢

Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Total Total
General Designated Funds Funds 2011 2010
Fund Funds
£m im im £m fm £m
- 466 17 2053 2536 2432
- 272 122 421 815 799
0l - - - [V} ol
26 59 3¢ 89 213 160
27 79.7 178 256.3 3565 339.2
14 42 (1) - 61 &1
30 91 28 (0 5) 144 207
44 133 33 ©5) 205 268
20 30 03 - 53 61
24 103 30 {05) 152 207
5. 90.0 20.8 155.8 3717 359.9
38 32 08 - 78 68
13 B86.8 20.0 255.8 363.9 353 1
13 - - - 13 23
- 868 - - 858 828
. - 200 - 200 205
- - - 2558 2558 2475
1.3 86.8 200 2558 1463.9 3531

The notes on pages 36 to 50 form part of these financial statements

The financial statements on pages 32 to 50 were approved, and authorised for issue, by the Diocesan Bishop’s Counal on 14 May 2012

Wl

The Ven Dr W M Jacob
Member of Bishop’s Counal and
Finance Committee Chairman

Mr | R MWoolf
Member of Bishop’s Council
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Summary Income and Expenditure Account - for the year to 31 December 201 |

2010
£m

34

33.0

(34 0)

2011
£m

Non-endowment movements
Gross Income 330
Realised gains 2]
Total income 35.1
Total expenditure (34 1)
Net income on non-endowment funds 1.0

.0

before unrealised gains/(losses) and transfers

There was no income from non-charitable trading acuvity in the year

All incoming and expended resources relate to conunuing operations

The Summary Income and Expenditure Account is derived from the Statement of Financial Activities on

page 32, which together with the notes to the financial statements on pages 36 to 50 provides ful

infermation on the movement during the year on all the funds of the LDF

2010
fm

(43)

MNote of historical cost profits and losses - 20014
for the year to 31 December 2011 £m
(Deficit) for the financial year “n
Realisatuon of revaluation gains of previous years 26
Historical Cost (loss) / profit for the year (1.5)

(2.6)

The notes on pages 36 to 50 form part of these financial statements
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THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Cash Flow Statement - for the year to 3| December 2011

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Capital flows and financial investment
(Decrease) / Increase in cash in the year
Reconciliation of net cash flow to
movement in net funds (see note 13)

{Decrease) / Increase in cash in the year

MNon cash (increase) / decrease in funds
Movement in net funds in the year

Net funds at | January

Net funds at 31 December

The nates on pages 36 to 50 form part of these financial statements

Notes

13a

13b

13b

13¢

2011 2010
£m £m
79 (39
66 5.7
(13) 1.8
49 0.9
(6.2) 2.7
(62) 2.7
©1) 08
(63) 35
176 141
11.3 17.6
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THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Notes to the financial statements - for the year ended 31 December 2011

Princaipal accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordznce with applicable Accounung Standards in the United
Kingdom, the Statement of Recommended Practice. Accounting and Reporung by Chariwes (2005) and the Diocesan
Annual Report and Financial Statements Guide (v4 2009)

The accounts comply with the Chariues Act 2011, and the Companies Act 2006 A summary of the principal
accounting policies, which have been applied consistently except as stated, 1s set out below

Basis of preparation

The LOF prepares its annual financial statements on the historical cast basis of accounting as adjusted for the revaluation
of Investments, investment properties and functional properues

Funds

The LDF has various types of fund for which it 1s responsible and which require separate disclosure Note 12 shows the
balances and movements on each fund together with details of their uses The trustees’ report gives an overview of the

LDF's Reserves Policy
Unrestricted Funds

Unrestricted funds arise from all the accumutated surpluses and deficits in the provision of general charitable activities
{a) General Funds

(b) Designated Funds (note |2a)

The latter are funds earmarked by the LDF trustees for a specfic purpose The trustees have discretion over the
purpose and use of the funds They can be re-allocated or otherwise undesignated without reference to outside

agencies

Restricted Funds (note 12b)

These are funds subject to specific conditions imposed by the donor or by the specific terms of a trust deed or other
legal measure Income and expenditure on restricted funds is taken directly to those funds in the Statement of Financial
Activities except to the extent that income Is freely avaifable for the general purposes of the LDF

Endowment Funds {note |2c)
Permanent endowment capital must be held permanently whereas expendable endowment capital can be used but only -

In certan circumstances Income anising is included in general or restricted funds depending on the terms of the trust

instrument
Taxation status

The LDF 1s a registered charity and as such is able to take advantage of exempuions granted under the relevant tax
legislation ncluding part 10 of the Income and Taxes Act 2007 It 1s not hable to corporation tax on charitable income

or income from charitable acuvines
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THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Notes to the financial statements - for the year ended 31 December 201 | {continued)
1 4 Statement of Finanaal Activities

All material income and expendiure 1s accounted for on an accruals basis

Income Explanation

VYoluntary Income

Comman Fund Contributions paid by the pzrishes in the Diocese of London to the LOF
Donatans Gifts from external orgarsavons and indviduals

Church Commissioners fGrant income from the Church Commussioners

Trust for London Grant income from Trust for London {formerly City Parochial Foundauon)
Supend refunds Stpend refunds are amounts recewved in respect of clergy invaived in largely)

local imiwatves financed directly by panshes or other institutions

Activities for generating funds
Funcuonal Property Funcuonal property is usually held to house clergy ‘Where property 1s not used

rental income for this purpose in the short-term it s les out ar market rates to generate
additional income Designated and Glebe funcuonal rental mcome Is recevable]
within general funds Rental income from closed church buildings 1s accounted
[for within restncted funds

Assigned fees Assigned fees are statutory charges for weddings and funerals  They are imimally

paid to the incumbent and then legally transferred by the iIncumbent, to the LDF
to be set against the overall supends bill They are not addiuonal income to the|

basic supend

Investment Income

Dwvidends and Interest  |Income ansing 1s credited to the relevant funds on a receipts basis for drvdends)
recenvable and on an accruals basis for mterest Income

Investment Property Investment property is let out at market rate Designated and Glebe investmend]
rental income rental income 15 receivable within general funds
Expenditure IExglanggggn

Cost of generating funds — investment management costs
Renal portfolic costs |Agent fees paid in refation to the management of the property portfolio

agent fees

Investment property Repairs and maintenance relating to the investment property portfolio

repairs and maintenance
'Charitable activities
Mirustry |H|mstry prmanly includes the payment of clergy supends, national insurance and

nsion contributions

{Educauion & Outreach  |Annual grant to the Board for Schools in London plus direct costs related to
children's ministry, community ministry and secal justice
Parish and Area Support |Costs asseciated with the Areas including office costs semor clergy expenseg

|Servnices and the costs of advisers

Clergy Housing & Care |Clergy Housing & Care of Churches represents the repairs mamntenance,

of Churches deprecrauon and other property costs associated with the functional property]
portfolio, and the relevant costs of the Diacesan Advisory Committee and
property department.

Nauonal Church The LDF's contribution to the Nanonal Church s costs

Grants to Panshes & Grants made to London parishes and overseas Dioceses

Overseas

Governance

Governance Costs Governance costs include the costs of governance arrangements which refate to

the general running of the chanty as opposed to those costs associated with
chariable acuwities and fund raising  Governance costs include the costs off

Diocesan Synod and the cost of legal adwce provided to the trustees in their

capacity as the LDF s trustees




THE tONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Notes to the financial statements - for the year ended 31 December 2011 (continued)
15 Tangible Fixed Assets

Broperty

All funcuonal praoperty 18 held at depreciated replacement cost and investment property at market value Assets in the
course of construcuon are held at cost

{(a) Benefice Houses
The LDF 13 formally responsible for the maintenance and repair of parsonages and has some jurisdicuon over their

future use or patenual sale but legal utle s vested in the iIncumbent.

FRS 5 requires the atcounting treatment to follow the substance of arrangements rather than their stnct legal form
Accordingly the trustees consider it appropriate to treat such properues as expendable endowment fund assets valued
at msurance value It i3 considered that this approximates once deprecrated to deprecated replacement cost.

(b) Burial Grounds

Burnl grounds are held at £nil value in the accounts as the wrustees believe that the cost of a pracucal valvation s
onerous compared to the addibonal benefits to be gained The LDF 15 unable o sell or change the use of any of these
assets without reference to external erganisauions such as the Church Commissioners These resuictons, together
with the inherent difficulves of applying convenuonal property valuaton methods, are all significant factors in the
adopuon of this valuaton approach for this class of assets

{c} Closed Church Buildings
Church buildings closed for regular public worship (referred to as "Closed Church Bulldings', and formerly known 2s
Redundant Churches) are valued at sutable muluples of annual rental income where this 15 signficanc. Where this
approach 1s not applicable, the asset 15 held at €nil value in the books

(d) Assets in the course of construction and major capital projects
Property costs over £10k are capnalised where there has been significant enhancement to the underlying assets In
pracuce all major capral projects are capitalised

(e) Fixtures, fittings and equipment

Fuctures fitungs and equipment additions under €10k are written off fully n the year of purchase ltems over £10k are
capitalised

Deprecauon

Foced assets are depreciated over ther useful economic fe  Depreciauon « charged on the ollowing types of assets,
aver thewr expected lives as follows

Benefice Houses §50 years
Freehold properues 50 years
Leasehold properues Lease Term
Fixtures fittings and equipment 4 years

16 Investments
Investment Property

The trustees’ policy 15 that freehold properues held for investment purposes have been included at the trustees’ best
esumate of market value Only major items of glebe and designated fund property held for investment purposes are
valued Other properues are included at a capital multiple of 20 years rental (2010~ 20 years rental) This s kept
under review in light of changing market condiuons of both property values and rental incomes  Invesument Property
1s not depreciated

Cther Invesuments
Investments are stated at market value calculated by referente to the nud market value at 31 Decernber Reahsed
gains or loszes on disposal are calculated as the difference berween disposal proceeds and carrying value

1 7 Custodian Trusts

Trusts where the LOF acts as Custodian Trustee with no control over the management or use of the funds are not
included n the Balance sheet or Statement of Financial Activities of the LDF

A separate Balance sheet and Statement of Financal Acuviues s set out on page 53 with supporung notes on pages 54
and 55 The custodian trustee funds have been subject to 2 non-stanory audit and the audn report thereon covering
pages 51 1o 55 13 found on page 56




THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Notes to the financial statements - for the year ended 3) December 2011 (continued;

1010
£'000

2 606
15

2,631

k]|

34

2010
£000

2024
182
414

2,620

1 (Deficit) on Income and Expenditure for the fi { year
The (deficit) for the financial year 15 stated after charging 2011
£'000
Depreciation - Functlonal and Investment Property 1,848
Depreciation - Fixtures Fitungs and Equipment 34
2,882
Auditors’ Remuneration {including VAT)
Statutary audit 3
Non-Audit Services
- Tax advice 1
+ Non-statutory review of Custodian Truses k)
35
3 Staff and Clergy Costs
Costs of ay staff 2011
€000
‘Wages and Salaries 2002
Employer's Nauonal Insurance 186
Employer's Pension Contnbuuons {note 14(a)) 404
2,592
The number of lay employees employed on diocesan business was 62 (2010- 57) During 2011 3
extra people (201¢ 3) had employment contracts with the LDF but were funded externally and
seconded elsewhere The toral number of lay employees for statutary purposes was therefore 65
(2010 60)
The Full Time Equivalent average number of people employed on diocesan business was 56
(2010 52) Dunng 2011 3 extra people (2010 3} had employment contracts with the LDF buc
were funded externally and seconded elsewhere The total Full Time Equivalent for stacutory
purposes was cherefore, 59 (2010 55)
2011
The number of employees whose emolumernts for the year exceeded £60 000 are as follows No

£110001-£120 000 |
£100001-£1 10000 -
£80,001-£90,000 1
£70 001-£80 000 |
£60 001-£70 009 |

2010
No.

Aggregate employer normal pension contributions for cthe employees above were £58 209
(010 £3% 004) payable 1o various pension schemes

Following the implementation of ecclesiastcal degislation on | February 2011 there were 22 indwiduals

{mainly chaplains) who legally became employees of the LDF Where their costs fall to the LDF they are
included in the Clergy disclosure note below In total for 2011 their eosts included Gross Supends (£425 987),
Employer's NI (£38 410) and Employer’s pensien contributions (£137 409)

Clergy holding parochial or archdiaconal posts

2010
£000

IH715
681
4760

17,158

517

2011

'000
Gross stipends 11913
Employer's NMational Insurance 971
Employer s Pension Contribuuons (note | 4(b}) 4058
16,952

Average number of toal supendiary clergy posts 516
Number of total supendlary clergy posts at 31 December 528

525

Clergy posts above include Common Fund clergy off-Common Fund clergy and chaplains
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THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Notes to the financial statements - for the year ended 31 December 2011 (continued)

4 Governance Costs and the allocation of Support Costs between Charitable Activities

Indirecs suppory cost (allocated below)

Salary and employment costs

Office costs

Resources Expended

Cost of generating funds

Investment monagement costs

Rental portfolio costs - agent fees
Investment Property repairs & maintenance

Fundraising

Chantable activities
Minisery

Educaven & Qutreach

Pansh & Area Support services

Clergy Housing Property and Care of
Churches Costs

Clergy Housing Depreciauon

Cergy Houding & Care of Churches

Nauienal Church
Grants to Panishes & Overseas

Governance Costs

Other resources expended

Indirect support costs are allocated based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) saff numbers as administrative costs
primanily consist of salary and employment costs, subject to a de minimus thresheld  Office costs that are ncurred

are directly atnbutable to the seaff employed and are also analysed on this basis  Finally residual administration

costs are apportioned In proporuon to expenditure

5 Grants to Parishes & Overseas

Funding source

Grants o Parishes from,

Diocesan Bishop's Council

Trust for London / Other

Area Pastoral and UPA Funds
Bishop of London's Mission Fund
Funds held for Pansh Benefic

Overseas,
Angola and Mozambique (ALMA) and

Lent Projects
Grane administravion allocauon

Total

2011 2010
£'000 £'000
1,248 1158
32 282
1.560 1,440
Before Direct Indirect Total Total
allocation of  support costs support 2011 2010
support costs costs
£'000 £'000 €000 £'000 L7000
425 - - 425 347
1,152 - 42 1194 1 04)
7 - - 7 2
1,584 - 42 1 626 | 390
19271 3 605 19 879 19 797
436 4 146 586 555
684 264 350 1 298 1371
5098 165 242 5,505 5794
2,848 - - 2,848 2,606
7,946 165 242 8353 8400
196) - - 1961 2,100
1917 - 53 1,970 1742
- 122 122 244 242
16 - - 16 105
33,815 558 1,560 35,933 35,702
General Designated  Restricted Endowment Total Total
funds funds funds funds 011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 €900
- 34 - - 34 -
180 - 54 - 234 201
. 290 - - 290 B4
- 266 - - 266 867
- 227 720 ? 957 439
180 817 775 9 1781 1593
- - 136 - 136 101
53 - - - 53 48
231 817 11 9 1,970 1,742

40




502 3swadnde. paarpasdap (0 1aeAnbY SIGTUCTERL € 5) YDIYM N[TA SXUEINTUN PATIIMIP IT PILLIED Alt SFINOY [TUORNN) [t PUE Ay

417 2y jo saoyo pagenb Aqeyns e Aq siead Suuaaiatur 3y vl pauuopad Sulaq suonenea pus-read WU Jim §| 07 J3qUSS3SC] | £ AQ NP 5 UOREN[EA [BLIG) 1X3U Iy}
nunmnsuoy Auadoly Aepsway 4q )07 S2quedaq | ¢ to paneaay Apuno) asam duadoad Juaunssam puny pareudisap pue aqagd solew 547 ey

A 13 JO JOUPRD SUTS] PIAUI-IN[EA I JO | | (T U UDTIENEARS 13U 4 JO 1edus 2up 2pA3uI 100 O NELL £17 JO SAOQR SuItB LOREN[EALS 19N
| 510U Ul 100 333 saxed SupuRcITE Stp 1AW IIUERIODIE U| PINJEs e safIRdoly

01QT 42qwaQ 1LY
aneA yoog 39N

Auadoayg Judunsasu| AGN
{fauadoug Eeuopsung AGN
Aq s

110Z 43quNg (£33
ANEA OOG N

1107 53quisagq (€ Y
ucpeneAsy

sjesodsig)

siajsuesy

Jeak 3y Joy 3wy

1 10T Asenuef | 3y
uvonepxdag

1107 JSquanagy (€Y
uopenEARy

sjesedsi]

sJajsued)

suonippy

1107 Asenuef | 1

UOREN[EA JO 3500 1Y

A343d0. g JUIWIISIAU| pUR [BUORDUN - $3I55Y paxiy ojqiBue) ¢

0ZI'€TE SEB'BET Tl66y BOZ'Z8F &1L 129'€1 099'0¢ 1£4T 6B¥ B9
020'S1E £98'LYL 140'15 95 K61 504 | STS'EL 06L'CL 128°7 696'0L
oLr'ig 980T SBOTY LI LT | 666'9L
131 LLT'S0T SB6'8 ¥BS'vo1 8oLl B0L'l Ty'or £59T OLE'EN
BLO'SEE [{ 17 120'15 ras'rel soL' STH'EN 08L'CL 1287 694'0L
IST'ET £94'51 181 058t 0£ - S9E'L 1144 691°L
(181) - (8 - tian)

- (oL) fo0) - oL - o

BYET oz8'l 114 LE5M or - 0z0*1 5 (313
S8¢'0T sot'ri 0951 114 44 - ogr'y *l 0L 9
Of¥'8st 9TE'T9T 788'TS $E¥ 307 0107 ST6 €1 SLI'LE |¥0'E 8E1 8L
178 1] t58'0) 8ge'| 16 6 34 BOE 3134 1] vIST
(054) ) (23] 0] (z18) (zze)

. (g12'1} - [CTTA)] - BIT'l 8IT'l
Tse'l 999 %6 04§ - #8311 £59 ££5
SO8'LYE Pro'tST uris 165 661 186 [421} orltiL SPE'T S6L ¥L
000, 0007 0007 0003 0007 0007 000 7 0007 000,7
(=TT [L=LT R Apradoay SITNOH SINOH Aaadoag [e3oL Ayiadoayg Aasadoay
pauquod 93D 2yduag g LEX Ve ) PIOVFE3T  PIOYId
POy ployased paso|y Buoq
spunyg
spung JuNUMOPU] Fqepuddxg PILASAY spung paeufisag - pasanIsIaun
{ponupuo3) |07 499 Q It pap

aeak Ay} 40) - SIUIWIIEYS [RIDURLY ILF O3 SIION

ANMd NVS3D0Id NOANOT3IHL




THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Notes to the financial statements - for the year ended 31 December 2011 (continued)

7 Investments

General Fund
CCLA Global Equities

Designated Funds

CCLA Globa) Equines

QUM Chanity Value and Inc Equities
CCLA Fixed Interest Securiues Bond
M&G Chanbond

MAG Investments

Devgoaced Trysts

M&G Investments

TOTAL - Desigrated

Restricted Funds
OLIM Charity Value and inc Equities

Sole Trusts

Listed investments

MA&G investments

CBF Investment Fund

CBF Fixed Interest Securiues Fund

TOTAL - Restricted

Expendable Endowment Funds
Glsbe

M&G Investments

Permanent Endowment Funds
Sole Trusts

Listed Investments

MAG Investments

CBF Investment Fund

CBF Fixed Interest Securwies Fund
CBF Property Fund

TOTAL - Endowment

Total Fixed Asset investments

Cost or valuation

Addiuons represent the cost or market value at the date of gift or transfer to the LDF

CBF wvestments are valued by the CCLA.

At 1 January Unrealised At 3| Decermber
an Additions Disposals Gains { (Losses) Transfers 2011
£'000 L'000 £ 000 £ 000 L'000 £ 900

- 2,900 - (340) - 1,560

- 1100 - (12%) - b2

_ 200 - {n - 139

- 750 - 51 - 8ol

- 750 - 43 - 793
2,962 - - (156} - 2,805
270 He - {21) - 3588
3,232 3,919 - 123 - 5.928
- 80O - {42) - 758

20 - - - - 20
2,667 - (50) {138) 31 2,510
720 127 {322} [&)] 1o 6248

8 - {8 - - -
3,415 927 (380) {re9) 41 3,914
5564 - - (294) - 5,170
3 - - 3
2,928 - - (133) 30 1,764
909 " n (54 0 885
23 - - 1 - 24

3 - - - @ -
9,430 It {11) {480) (4) 8,746
16,077 6,757 [ELTH) (1,232) 137 11,348

The histaric cost of the investmensts beld ac 31 December 2011 1s £20 735k (2010 £14 369k)
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THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Notes to the financial statements - for the year ended 3] December 2011 (continued)

8 Investments in subsidiary undertakings

The LDF owns 100% of the 1ssued share capital of a subsidiary undertaking, Causton Street Farms Limited
(registravion number 2768104) The company has been dormant since | January 2005 The subsidiary 1s excluded
from consolidation because 1t 1s not material to the financial statements of the LDF

9 Debtors
General Designated Restricted 2018 2010
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Contributions to the Common Fund 448 - - 448 502
Rent Recevable 329 75 373 777 746
Prepayments and accrued income 54| 80 113 734 631
1,318 155 486 1,959 1,879
Loans to Parishes
- Diocesan Bishop's Council awarded - 3,007 - 3,007 2,898
- Area Council awarded - 595 - 595 654
- 3,602 - 3,602 3,552
Loans to individuals 3t 409 - 440 179
Other Debtors 121 - - 121 425
1,470 4,166 486 6,122 6,035
2011 2010
Movements in Loans to Parishes £'000 £'000
At | January 3,552 2,418
Additions (new loans and interest) 1,409 2,127
Repayments (1,359) (993)
At 31 December 3,602 3,552

Durning the year, interest on Diocesan Bishop’s Council (Finance Commuttee) loans to panshes was charged at a rate
of 1% or 2% above the Bank of England base rate depending upon the rules in force when the loan was awarded

No interest was charged on other {oans

Certain loans to panshes and individuals fall due after more than one year and the total of these as at 3t December
2011 was £1,936k (2010 £1,400k)




THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Notes to the financial statements - for the year ended 31 December 2011 (continued)
9b Related Parties

Payroll Services

These are undertaken on behalf of a number of local church-based projects whereby the LDF acts as a payroll agent. At 31 December
2011 other debtors included £13k (2010 £9k) and other creditors included £13k (2010 £3Kk) in respect of gross salary and employer’s

Natonal Insurance

London Diocesan Board for Schools (LDBS)

The LDF and the LDBS are separate charites but vanous Diocesan bodies appoint the majority of the trustees/directors of the two

H

or ions A of r bers are trustees/directors of both chanues

The Rt Revd and Rt Hon the Lord Bishop of London, Dr R | C Chartres KCVO s President and Chairman of the LDF and President of

the LDBS

The Archdeacon of Middlesex, trustee of the LDF, served as Chairman of the LDBS during the year
The Revd Preb G Pope was also a trustee of both the LDF and the LDBS dunng the year

Mr I R M Woolf, 4 trustee of the LDF 15 employed by the LDBS

The LDF makes an annual grant to the work of the LDBS ameounting to £160k (2010 £150k} The LDBS is a charitable company (reg no

198131} At 31 December 2011 other debtors included £10k for salary and office cost recharges (2010 £7k}

In addivon to the grant described above, the LDF makes the following donatuens tn kind to the LDBS These relate to office space and

prowvision of house services including reception, cleaning utilives IT and payroll support. The esumated value of such services is

2011 2010
£'000 000
Accommodauon a7 104
House services and meeung rooms 173 175
260 279

The accommodation cost relates to rent. A rent review 1s scheduled every five years The next review is due in 2014

Trustees' Expenses/Remuneration

In 2011 the LDF reimbursed a toml of £41k to 12 members of the Bishop's Council (2010 £30k to 12 members) The expenses related
maostly to working expenses, for example as Archdeacon, Area Dean or other official By virtue of ther clerical office the LDF s
responsible for a substantial part {if not all) of the supend of the clerical members of the Bishop's Counail along with nmatonal insurance
and costs associated with housing The stipends, national insurance and pension of Bishops 1s borne and funded by the Church
Commuissioners The following was paid to 13 other members of the clergy n 2011 (Full Time Equivalent: 13} who were members of the

Bishop's Councail (2010 16 members Full Time Equivalent 16)

201 2010

£000 £000

Gross Supends 314 356
Employer's Natuonal Insurance 28 26
Employer's Pension Contribution 105 134
447 516

Under the Repair of Benefice Buildings Measure 1972 the Diocese 1s responsible for the upkeep of parsonages 13 members of Bishop's
Council during the year (2010 10) were housed in parsonages by virtue of their clerical office  Two employees (2010 two) were housed

in a parsonage though not by virtue of their employment

A, further B members of Counal (and Finance Committee} {2010 8) and two employees in holy orders (2010 nil} were housed in

properues owned by the Londen Diocesan Fund

No members (2010 one)} of the Councll were contracted by the LDF duning the year to carry out management accounting services
These services were carried out on an arms-length basis The value of these services was £Nil (2010 £6k)

Declarations of Interest

The Synodical Secrerary maintins a register of declarauons of interest. All trustees and Senior Officers have access to these records




THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Notes to the financial statements - for the year ended 31 Decernber 2011 (continued)

10a Cash and short termm investments

General Designated Restricted Endowment 2001 2060
funds funds funds funds
£'000 L'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Bank Deposns 1171 8,939 2.829 (542} 12397 19 357
Cash ac Bank and in hand 1,882 143 - - 2025 | 307
3,053 9,082 2,829 {542) 14,422 20,664
10b Investment Income [ al D d Restricted Endowment 2011 2010
funds funds funds funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 '000 £'000
Dhvidends a9 17 185 - 1 041 800
Cash and Deposi interest 100 24 13 - 137 136
Fixed interest investments - 3 - 3 3
toan interest 50 - - - 50 34
PE9 41 201 - 1,231 973
H Creditors
General Designated Restricted Endowment 2011 2010
funds funds funds funds
£'000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one
year
Parish Loans Payable - 1253 - - 1253 1802
Grants Payable - 1535 - - I 535 | 754
Orher Creditors 864 44 134 17 1 059 1206
Accruals and deferred mcome 1071 178 185 - 1,434 1382
1,935 1,010 319 17 5,281 6,154
Amounts falling due after one
year
Other Credutors 1 000 - - - 1,000 -
Accruals and deferred income 2,887 - 782 - 3 669 3703
Church Commissioners re Value - 3155 - - 3,155 3051
Linked Loans
3,887 3,155 182 - 7.824 6,754

£7B2k of the Restricted Accruals and deferred income above (2010 £789k) relates to the residual lease premium for the lease of St Marks
Church in North Audley Street, Westmnster In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounung Pracuce this balance 18 being
released as income to the Statement of Financal Actvives evenly over the |12 year period of the lease term

£2 887k of the General fund Accruals and deferred income above (2010 £2,914k) refaces to the residual lease premium for the lease of 13 & 13a
North Audley Street, Westiminster

Value Linked Loans due 1o the Church Commissioners become repayable when the house on which they are secured s sold They are
concessionary loans made by the Church Commussioners for onward lending to parishes usually for housing of assistant clergy  The properues
purchased with Value Linked Loans are held within Designated Funcoonal Property

Value Linked Loans are shown in the accounts at the depreciated insurance value of the property bought with the toan
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MNotes to the financial statements - for the year ended 31 December 2011 {continued)

12a Designated Funds

Funcional Property

Investrment Property

Parsonage Reserve

Fund Property Reserve
Inspection and Maintenance Fund
Designated Trusn

Mission Opportunity

Bushop of London s Mission Fund
Clergy Trainmg and Support
Asea Paszoral Funds

Area Bank Accounts

Dvocesan Loan Capital
Tottenham Hale Reserve
Strategw Development Reserve
Tota$ Designated Funds

At | January Incoming Rescurces Unrealised Transfers At 1) December
2011 Resources Expended Galng/(Losses) 1011

£00¢ L 000 £ 000 £000 £'000 €000
40 997 {1 020) 1 944 1,547 43,468
26612 - 508 45 27,168
2.403 51 48 19 (570) 1,951
1126 EA L 22 {107) (375} 1,775
91 55 15 481
28213 34 228) {23) (43) 1,563
1436 - (88) @ 4 1,300
357 293 (283) {5 362
248 bl 59) {9 - 197
1334 7 290) 6 L4
104 59 (20) . 143
4229 103 34) un 150 4,431

- - B 100 100

145 7 - 1] 168
62,825 24672 {1.897) 2,219 72 84,801

Note {2d

* - Incommg ressurces, inchades reclised gons.

o Fund Descrip

Funcuoml Property

Investment Property

Parsonage and Fund Property
Reterves

inspecuon and Maintenance Fund
{formerty Quinguennal Fund)

Desgrated Truss

Mission Opportunity

Bishop of London s Mission Fund

(BLMF)

Clergy Tramung and Support,

Area Pastoral Funds

Area Bank Accounts

Diotesan Loan Capial

Touenham Hale Reserve

Strategic Development Reserve

{refer o the Uustees report for informasion regarding the LDF's reserves policy)

As welt 23 incorporating the Diocesan offices, Functional Property compnies over 90 unlts of residental accommodation
used to house clergy whe are not housed in parsonages These include area bishops archdescons chaphins team vicars and
many athers. O the fund value at the year-end of £43 4m, {46 5m 18 represented by actual properties which are parually
affset by (£3 2m) of Yalue Linked Loans creditors {as described in note 11}

Irvestment property compnses over 40 freehold and leasehold properues (£27 2m) heid to generate income and capml
growth which helps fund stipends and other charitable activiues

The Parsonage and Fund Property rexarves are wsed for the purchase and refurbishment of Parsonage Houte Capial
{End ) and Fu and Property (On d) respectivety VWhen 1 property 1 sold, the sale proceeds
are cradited to the relavant fund.

Ve carry out planned maintenance on an average of one sixth of cur funcuonal properties each year (83 of approximatety
500) but the actual numbers vary from year o year  Since inspection and maintenance warks were carfued out on B0
parsonages in 2011 the cost of 3 sers of works  at an average of £12.4k (£55k} - has been credited 1o dus fund Al
necestary works in accordance with the relevant Measure ire undertaken

Thes fund represencs proceeds ansing from the sale of parish based properties that were in use by those parishes but were
fegalty owned by the Diocese. Each sale of such property 13 a3sessed on a tase-By.cate basis and whare there is 2 compelling
reason the sale proceeds may be desgnated for pansh purposes, usually o fund a pansh based development or replacement
facility

Thus fund was established to meet specific clergy and related costs that are necessary in implementing Diocesan rmission and
munstry policy In 2010 £900k was wransferred inta this fund from the net proceeds of operational properdes no longer
required.

This fund 13 used for new local mission indatives (not capital projects} throughout the diocese  Each appheation 15 assessad
on a case-by-case basis by the BLMF board an internal committee chaired by the Bishop of Londen,

Thes fund 8 for providing general clengy traning and support. The designated budge: holder for the fund is the Bishop of
Kensingron, 2ssisted by the Director of Minooy

This repreaents funds for each of the five episeopal areas which can be used for specific projects in each area. Deasions on
the use of the funds are mken by Area Councls The fund was broadened n 2010 1o Incorporate the Area Loan Capiul Fund
and the Urban Pronty Area Funds.

These are the Kenuingron and Willesden Area bank accounts which are used to directly support each of thede Areas.

This fund provides loans to parishes, with indridual loans not normally exceeding £200k. Requests from parishes are first
considered by the Loans Monitonng Group (LMG) a sub-commitiee of the Finance Committee, and the decrtions made by
the Finance Commutzee.

Thas fund i3 set aside to support the T in Te h Hale ta further the mission and ministry of the church
0 that location

Thas fund Is to fimance work to idform and assist m the stratepc deployrment of the LDF's resources 10 burther the musion
and rmunttry of the church in London.
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Notes to the financial statements - for the year ended 31 December 2011 {continued)

12b Restnicted Funds

Sole Trust Expendable Funds
Closed Chureh Buildings Fund
Closed Church Buidings Property
BLMF restricted fund

Projects resuicted funds

Bishops' secretaries
Envircnmental fund

Total Restricted Funds

At | January Incoming Resources Unrealised Transters Ac 3| December
2011 Resources Expended Gains/(Losses) 2011
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 000 £ 000
S 657 300 {847) (148) {87) 4,505
1100 m {194) “n 3 1,089

13621 . 308 I 13,925

1] 51 (41} {3} 8

1} 50 (95) B "ns

| 182 (162) 1

13 6 {20y | -

10,528 851 (1,379) s (62) 20053
Nate 124

*  Incormang resources, ncpdes reoksed pons

Restricted Funds
Sole Trust Expandable Funds

Cloted Church Bulldings Fund

Clased Church Buldings Property

BLMF restrcued Fund

Projects restncted funds

Bishops' secretanes

Environmental fund

12¢ Endowment Funds

Expendabls Endowment

Glebe Property Fund
Glebe lnvesiment Fund
Parsonage House Capinal
Permanent Endowment

Scle Trust Permanent Endavwment

Total Endowment Funds

This fund camprises some 90 reszricuve Trusts which are held kor specific pansh ar dwocesan purposes. These Trusts are comsolidated
wath the main LDF accounts as the LDF acts as Sole Trustee and therefore has control. The permanen: endowment element 13
disclosed in note | 2c. Each Trust is governed by its own trust instrument which may be in the form of a Chanty Commission scheme
for example. The actvity of the Angola, Londan and Mozambique Assocadon {ALMA) is consolidatad under this heading

Tius fund represents the Diocesan Pastoral Account (DPA) and 15 primarily used for Closed Church Buldings rennal income and
antemance expendes. Incame from the rental of churches no longer used for public worghip, that iz not required for the manterance
of these buildings, may be used for the pay of stip and of property for the housing of dlergy

The DPA s governed by the Pastoral Measure 1983 as ded by subseq legpstath

Ths fund represents the net book value of Cloted Church Buildings property (see note §)

This fund deals with donations ta the Sishap of Landan s Mission Fund (see note |2a) which are heid under the terms of reference of
the BLMF only or indicate other specific restnctions.

Thus fund compnses a small number of projects metuding the Church Urban Fund (CUF} for which the LDF recenes restnced funding
Incame sometimes refates w the aggregate match funding recerved in relation 1o a nymber of BLMF and other peoects In 2011 It
Inchudes the Emergency4London appeal in response to the Landon Riots, whuch rused £54 000

Thes shows the restncted funding from the Church Commissioners recetved as a comtnbution towards the cost of te Bishops
secretanes.

This shows the restricted funding towards vanous environment projects carried out by the LDF

At | January Incoming Resources Unrealised Transfers At 3) December
2011  Resources Expended  Gains/(Losses) 2011
£ 000 L 000 £ 000 £000 £000 I 000
49912 {251) 1338 71 5iomn
44n2 538 2 294 (142) 4576
188 ¥27 {1.577) 9.521 {578) 194,293
4101 8 {186} (%5) 38112
147,412 538 (1,834) 10,37% {743) 155 752
Note | 2d

* incoming resources, sciudes reaised gons.

Glebe Property Fund

Glebe Investment Fund

Parsonzge House Capetal

Sole Trus: Permanen: Endowment

Thas represents the net back vikse of glebe property with Movements shown i note 8. Rental income from glebe property o credized
o genenal funds where it 15 used to fund clergy supend payments. As with Dexigrated Fund Property the fund 5 split between
f 1 (€9 Om) and (£42 Im) property

This represents the carrying value of glebe and cash | ncome from glebe property 15 credited ta general funds
where 1t 15 only wed to fund chergy supend payments. The use of Glebe 1ssets detailed above 15 governed by the Dicesan Supends.
Fund Measure (1953) and the Endowments and Glebe Measure 1976

This fund represents the net boek value of Freehold and Leasehold Benefice Houses (see note 6)

Thus fund represents those zmounts held under the LDF's Sole Trinteethip where the capetal is not expendable (see note 12b) Pare of
the rransfers represent the winding up of small vrusos.

47




THE LONDON DIOCESAN FUND

Notes to the financial statements - for the year

12d Transfer Between Funds - Detailed Breakdown of Movements

Seaternent of Financial Actrmties transfers znalysed.

Parsonage addmons

Parsonage reclatsifications

Trus: reclassHicadons

Trandfer of budgeted terms in the Generzl Fund to
the designated Ares Pastoral Funds

TFransfers to designated funds at year end

Release of funds from vanous Scle Trusis
Miscelancous transers

ded 31 D 2001 ( inued)

General Designated Restrcted Endowment Total
L'000 £'000 £3900 L'c00 £'000
- (570) 570 -

- 1218 (12t0)

- . 95 (95}
213 213 .
(116) e - -
162 (162) B
- (5} [ . .
(147) 972 (62) (743) -

Norte 120 Note i2b Note {2¢

i. Tranfer from or to the designated Parsonage reserve for the purchase or nafe of parsonages respectivety
ii Farsonage rectussdications comprises the trangfer of property from parsconage to dessgnated fund functional property
ilh The transfer from endowment to restricted funds (pnmarily comprised of Investments) relates to the winding up of small erusts under Charity Commission rules.
iv These transfers relate to budgeted items set aside from the General Fund for the deugnated Area Pastoral Funds
w Thete retate 16 transfers agreed at the year-end from the General Fund to specifie dessgnated funds
wi These transfers refate to the release of funds from vanous Sole Trusts to be utilised on approprate general fund purposes

{3 Naotes to the cash flow statement

a) Reconciliation of operating deficit te
operating cash flows

Operating Deficit

Deprecation charges

{increase) m debtors

in¢rease in creditors

inveszment and Rental Income

b) Gross Cash Flows

Returms on investments and servicing of finance
Drdends and Interest Recenable

Rental Income

Captal Expenditure and investment

Sale of property
Purchase of property
Sale of invesznents
Purchase of imeestments

<} Analysis of Changes in nec funds

Funds

Cash at bank and in kand
Short Term Deposits

Valpe-knked koqm due dfter one pear

1011 010
Total Total
£000 £ 000
(4 148) (4221}
2,882 2631
&7 {1839
70 51%
(6 593) 5699}
{1.874) (3,893)
1231 973
5362 4716
4,593 5,899
1418 4036
{1 852) (3191}
367 105
(6 8%4) a0
(961) ¥30
At | January Cash Other At 3] December
2001 Flows 011
£'000 £000 1000 £ 000
1307 78 2,025
19357 {6 950) 12,397
20,664 (6.242) 14 422
(3051) (04} (155)
17,613 (8,243) (104) 11,267

Referenice
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Notes to the financial statements - for the year ended 31 December 2011 (continued)

14 Pensions
{a) Lay staff pensions

The LDF parucipates in the Church of England Defined Benefit Scheme (DBS), part of the Church Workers
Pension Fund The non-contributory scheme provides benefits based on final pensionable salaries The Church
of England Pensions Board is the trustee and administers the Pension Fund The assets of the Pension Fund are
held separately from those of the LDF

At 3| December 2011 the LDF had 36 active members and 54 deferred pensioner members in the Pension
Fund (2010 42 and 52 members respectvely) out of a total of 1,190 acuve members and 1,517 deferred
members (2010 1,179 and 1,513 members respectively)

It 15 not possible for an ndividual employer to determine its share of the underlying assets and liabilities as
each employer, through the Life Risk Pool, 1s exposed to actuarial risks associated with the current and former
employees of other entities participating in the DBS  In such cases, FRS |7 requires the employer to account
for its contributions to the DBS as if it were a defined contribution scheme but to make certain additional
disclosures based on available informatton The required disclosures, together with a description of the
operation of the DBS, are given below.

For funding purposes, the DBS 1s divided into sub-pools in respect of each participating employer as well as a
further sub-pool, known as the Life Risk Pool The Life Risk Pool exists to share certain risks between
employers, including those relaung to mortality and post-retrement investment returns

The division of the Scheme into sub-pools 1s notional and 1s for the purpose of calculaung ongotng
contributions They do not alter the fact that the assets of the Scheme are held as a single trust fund out of
which all the benefits are to be provided From ume to ume, a nouonal premsum s transferred from

employers’ sub-pools to the Life Risk Pool and all pensions and death benefits are pad from the Life Risk Pool

If following an actuarial valuation of the Life Risk Pool there 1s a surplus or deficit in the pool and the Actuary
so recommends, further transfers may be made from the Life Risk Pool to the employers’ sub-pools, or vice
versa The amounts to be transferred (and their allocation between the sub-pools) will be settled by the
Church of England Pensions Board on the advice of the Actuary

A valuation of the DBS s carried out once every three years, the most recent being as at 31st December
2010 In this valuation, the Life Risk Section was shown to be in defict by £6 7m and some £5 5m was
notionally transferred from the employers’ sub-pools to the Life Risk Pool

As noted above, the completed service section of the DBS (active and deferred members) for the London sub-
pool was found to be in deficrt as at 3Ist December 2010 The trustees have agreed to close this deficit by
makang annual payments over the next 5 years totalling £1,223k This hability has been inctuded in full in the
financial statements as at 31 December 2011

The LDF's contribution rate was changed from 25 8% to 25 4% of gross pensionable salary with effect from |
January 2009 The contribution rate increased to 31 0% from | April 2012,
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Notes to the financial statements - for the year ended 31 December 2011 (continued)

14

Pensions (continued)

(b) Clergy Pensions

From Ist January 1998, Diocesan clergy became members of the Church of England Funded Pensions Scheme
(CEFPS) This non-contributory scheme prowides benefits based on nauonal mmimum supends The Church of
England Pensions Board 15 the trustee and administers the Pension Scheme The scheme provides pensions that
relate to pensionable service after Ist January 1998 The scheme’s assets are held separately from those of the LDF
Past service clergy pensions for service before |st Janvary 1998 are paid by the Church Commusstoners at no cost
to the LDF

The LDF s the sponsoning employer for 524 members (2010 531) of the scheme out of a total membership of
approximately 3,000 acuve members The Church of England Funded Pensions Scheme 1s a defined benefit scheme
but the LDF 1s unable to identfy its share of the underlying assets and labilities - each employer in that scheme pays
a common contribution rate  For schemes such as this, paragraph 9(b) of FRS 17 requires the LDF to account for
pension costs on the basis of contributtons actually payable to the Scheme i the year

A valuauon of the Scheme was carried out as at 31 December 2009 This revealed a shortfall of £262m, with assets
of £605m and a funding target of £867m, assessed using the following assumpuons

An tnvestment strategy of

a) for investments backing habihties for pensions in payment, an allocation to gits, increasing hnearly from nil at 31
December 2009 to 2/3 by 3| December 2029, with the balance in return-seeking assets, and

b) for investments backing liabirties prior to retirement, a 100% allocation to return-seeking assets

c) Investment returns of 4 4% pa on gilts and 5 9% pa on equities,

d) RPl inflanon of 3 8% pa (and penston increases consistent with this),

e} Increase in pensionable supends of 3 8% pa, and

f} Post-retirement mortality in accordance with B0% of the S1NA tables, with allowance made for improvements in
mortality rates from 2003 according to the ‘medium cohort' projections, and subject to a mmmum annual

improvement in mortality rates of | 5% for males and | 0% for females

Following the results of the 2006 valuauon, the LDF's contribution rate was set at 39 7% of pensionable supends with
effect from | April 2008 The contnbution rate was subsequently increased to 45% of pensionable supends with
effect from | January 2010, reflecung unfavourable invesument experience and changes in financial market condiuons
Following the valuauon of the Scheme as at 3| December 2009, and some agreed changes to benefits, the
contribution rate has been set at 38 2% with effect from | January 2011

Contribuuons rates will be reviewed at the next valuation of the Scheme, due no later than as at 31 December 2012

Members’ Liabitity

The London Diocesan Fund 1s a company registered in England as a company himsted by guarantee, having no share
capital At 3| December 2011 there were 45 members {2010 45) who are hable to contnbute £1 each in the event
of the company being wound up The maximum number of members permitted by the Memorandum and Arucles of

Association 15 54
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Report of the Custodian Trustees

The Council of the London Diocesan Fund, usually acung as Custodian Trustee under ecclesiastical law presents the report and
non-statutory financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011

Legal Status

Under the Parochral Church Council {PCC) Pawers Measure 1956, the London Diocesan Fund acts as custodan trustee of parish

4

buildings and land It also acts as cu: trustee for held on specific trust. These pages report the specific trust holdings
only and provide an aggregatien of the financial assets of approximately 300 separate trusts Land and building assets held as

custodan trustee are not shown

Certain utde and trust deeds are held in the name of the Bishop of Londen’s Fund  This is a corporate body that pre-existed the

formauon of the London Diocesan Fund in 1918 and n which some property and capital were vested  For day to day purposes, its

actmues have been subsumed into the London Diocesan Fund since | Janiary 1918

Review of the Year

During the year there were transfers of £0 6m from the endowment fund to expendable capreal This represents ‘small’ (a5 defined
by the Charity Commussion) custodian trusts where the managing trustees have resolved to release cthe permanent endowment,

allowing capital to be expended m kne with the relevant trust purposes This 15 i accordance with the Chariues Act 2011

Total g resources r d steady from 2010 o 2011, with no increase or decrease.

The value of custadian wrust investments has dechined by £0 5m after significant stock market losses during the year

Funds continue to be expended in line with the purposes for which they were intended with some £4 0m expended for chantable
purposes dunng the period under review The £1 Zm increase in expenditure is due to an exercise undertaken i 201 | w transfer

dizn trusts 1o managing trustees where there is ne legal requirement, or pastoral reason, for the LDF o conunue to hold the
trust.

Addwonal new resources of £0 8m were receved during the year in the form of new trusts

The overall value of funds hefd by the London Drocesan Fund as custodian trustee fell by £3 Im to €15 8m in 2011 with the fall
explained by a combinauon of increased expenditure and a loss of invesument value

Statement of Custodian Trustees’ responsibilities

The Charities Act 201 | requires managing trustees to prepare financial staterments for each financial year which give a true and fair
wiew of the state of affairs of the funds and of their incoming resources and applicauon of resources, including ther income and

expenditure

The Custodian Trustees have chosen to prepare these statements in accerdznce with the Chaniues Acc 2011 In prepanng these
non-statutary financial statements in accordance with the Chariues Act 2011 the Custodian Trustees are required to

select suitable accounung policies and then apply them consistently

make judgements and esumates that are reasonable and prudent, and

state whether appheable accounung standards and statements of recommended practice have been followed
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financrl statements

The Custadian Trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounung records with respect to the transacuons and the financial
posiuon of the funds and to enable them te ensure that the finzncal statements comply with the Chariues Act 2011 They have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the funds and to prevent and

detect fraud and echerirregulanues.

ol

The Ven Dr W M facgb™" 14 May 2012

Member of Bishop s Council and
Finance Committee Chairman
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Non-Statutory Financial Statements

Statement of Financial Activities - for the year ended 31 Decernber 2011

Permanent Restricted Restncted Total Total
Endowment Fund Capital Fund Unexpended Income 2001 2010
Em é€m im im fm
Incoming Resources
Investment Income - - 02 02 02
Income direct to Beneficiaries - - 04 04 04
Total Incoming Resources - - 0é 06 06
Resaurces Expended
Income paid to Beneficanes - - ©4 {04 (06)
To Objects of the Trusts {03) (23) (10} {36) 22)
Total Resources Expended {0 3) (z31) {14 (40) (28)
Net (Qutgoing) Resources (03) {2.3) {0 8) 34 (22)
before transfers and new resources
Addivonal New Resources 0l o7 - 08 12
Transfers between funds (06) o7 ©n - -
Net {Outgoing) Resources for the year (o8) 09 09 {26) {10}
{Losses) f Gains on Investment Assets 04 ©1n - {05) 08
Net Movement in Funds for the year {12) {1 0) (09) [t X)) @2)
Funds at | January 2011 121 44 24 189 191
Funds at 3| December 2011 109 34 [ is8 189
C dian Frusts Bal. Sheet - as at 3| December 2011
Total Total
Notes 011 2010
Assets Lm im
Fueed Asset Investments 2 143 165
Current Asset Investments 3 15 24
Net Assets 158 89
Funds
Permanent Endowment 2 109 121
Restricted - Capstal 2 34 44
Restricted - Unexpended Income 3 15 24
158 189
The notes on pages 54 and 55 form part of these non- ey financial 1S

non-statutory fi gwmu\s were approved by the Diocesan Bishop's Counal acung as custodian trustee
on H May 2012

Mr 1R M Woall
Member of Bishop's Counal

The Ven Dr W M ]zcub
Member of Bishop s Counal and
Finance Commuttee Chairman
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Notes to the Custodian Trusts Financial Statements - for the year ended 31 December 2011

Accounting Policies

These non-statutory financial statements have been prepared tn accordance with apphicable accounting standards in the United

Kingdom and the Statement of Recommended Pracuce, ‘Accounting 2nd Reporung by Charires” A summary of the principal

accountng policies, which have been apphed consistendy except as stated. 15 set out below

a.

.

Basis of Preparation

Under the PCC (Powers) Measure 1956, the London Diocesan Fund acts as custodian trustee of panish buitdings and land The
London Diocesan Fund also acts as custodian trustee for monses held on specific trust These pages report the specific trust
holdings only and provide an aggregation of the transactions and balances of the financial assets of some 300 trusts

The Balance Sheet as at 3| December 2011 has been prepared, together with a Statement of Financial Acuvities, which analyses
the movement 1n funds Comparatve figures for 2010 have been provided

The non-statutary financial statements have been prepared on 2 basis censistent with figures included in the LDF's Balance Sheet.

As custodian trustee, the LDF prepares these non-statutory financial statements on the histoncal cost basis of accountng,
adjusted for the revaluatuon of investrnents

As the LDF has no day to day control over their disposition, custodian trusts are not inctuded within the LDF's main figures

A cash flow statement has not been prepared as the custodian trustee considers that each custodian trust meets the criteria of a
‘small’ company for this purpose

A specific trust bank account 1s maintained for trust transactions  Each trust has its own designated investment ledger and

account codes
It 15 the LOF's policy that where possible all income should go direct to the beneficianes

Fund Balances

All funds are subject to the specific condiuons imposed by the donor or by the terms of the trust deed or other applicable legal
measure The expendable capital funds and unexpended iIncome are classified as restricted funds Endowment funds are funds
subject to the condition that they be held as permanent capital

Income and expenditure on restricted funds zre taken directly to the appropriate fund except to the extent that income s freely
available to the managing trustees, and unexpended income from endowment assets s carned forward as a restricted fund

Investment Income

Dwidend and interest income Is accounted for on a receipts basis, pnmanly quarterly Rental income 1s accounted for on an
accruals basis

Other Income and Expenditure
Addwcnal capital represents capital introduced to an exasung custodian trust, or the creation of a new trust.

Expenditure on objects of the trusts represents the spending of capital and income in line with the terms of the trust deed or
other applicable governing document

Investments

Investments are stated at market value, calculated by reference to the mid market value at 31 December Realised and unrealised
gains or losses on investments in the year are credited to the appropnate funds
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Notes to the Custodian Trusts Financial Statements - for the year ended 31 December 2011 (continued)

2 Fixed Asset investments represented by Permanent Endowment Capital

Other Asset /
I January Unrealised Liabdity Movements 3| December
2000 Additions Disposals Gans / (Losses) and Transfers 2001
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Listed Irvestments 183 - - 4 {n 186
M&G Charifund 2863 186 (76) (134) (48) 2794
Investments held by CCEA.
CBF Fixed interest 239 12 - 13 - 264
CBF Investment Fund 5726 | - 319) (33) 5375
CEF Property Fund 2 87 - 1)) S0 155
CEBF Deposit Fund ER L | {314) - (622) 2166
Other Assets/{Liabiliues) 10 - - - (6) 4
12,144 287 {390) (440) {650) 10,941
Fixed Asset Investiments represented by Expendable Capital
Listed lnvestmencs 80 - 8) 3 - &9
M&G Chartfund 884 . {13%) (42) 45 752
Investments held by CCLA
CBF Fixed Interest 222 30 (45) A - 218
CBF Investment Fund 162 25 373 (81) 115 1309
CBF Deposit Fund 1,455 710 (i 745) - 191 91l
Other Assets/(Liabiliues) 60 - - - - 60
4323 765 (2,305 (15) 851 3319
Total Fixed Assets 16,467 1,052 (2,695) {55%) (7 14,260
3 Current Asset Investments repr d by Unexpended income from Permanent Endowment Assets
M&G Chardund 141 - {90) - [ 52
investments held by CCLA.
CBF Fixed Interest 94 - (8} 4 - %0
CBF Investment Fund i54 15 (8} (9 ) 148
CBF Deposic Fund 1292 138 (531} . @ 897
1,681 153 637) [ 5y 1,187
Current Asset Investments represented by Unexpended Income from Expendable Capital Assets
Investments held by CCLA.
CBF Fixed Interest 51 - (3) k] - 51
CBF invesunent Fund 61 I (t7 3 - 12
CBF Deposit Fund 507 25 (403) - 2 231
719 28 (413) - 1 324
Crther Assets/{Liabilives) 3l - - - (30} ]
Total Current Assets 2,431 179 {1,050) (5) (33 1,512
TOTAL 18,898 1,231 (3,755) (560) (41) 15,772
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Independent auditor's report to the Custodian Trustees of the Funds

Ve have audited the non-statutory financral statements of Custodian Funds for the year ended 31 December 2011 which
compnise the Statement of Financial Activiues, the Balance Sheet and the related notes The financial reporung framework
that has been applied in their preparauon i1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounung Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounung Pracuce)

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Custodian Trustees' Responstbilities set out on page 52, the trustees are
responsible for the preparauon of the non-stawtory financial statements which give a true and fair view

We have been appointed as auditor under section 144 of the Chanues Act 201 | and report in accordance with regulations
made under section 154 of that Act. Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the non-statutory financial
statements In accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Audiing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors This report, including our
opimion, has been prepared for and only for the charity’s trustees as a body Qur audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the chanty's trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permtted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
charity and the charity’s trustees as a body for our audit work, for this repart, or for the opimions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the non-statutory financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of non-statutory financial statements i1s provided on the APB's web-site at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on the non-statutory financial statements

In our opinton the non-statutory financial statements

* give a true and fair view of the state of the charity’s affairs as at 3! December 2011 and of its incoming resources and
apphicauon of resources, for the year then ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounung Practice, and

* have been prepared tn accordance with the requirements of the Charmes Act 2011

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

VVe have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Charities Act 2011 requires us to report to you
if, in our opinion

« the informauon given in the Report of the Custodian Trustees 1s mconsistent in any materal respect wath the non-
statutory financial statements, or

» sufficient accounting records have not been kept, or

« the non-statutory financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

+ we have not recerved all the infformauon and explanauons we require for our audit.

Mazews IO

Mazars LLP, Chartered Accountants and Statutory auditor
Tunes House, Throwley VWay, Sutton, Surrey, SM| 4JQ

14 May 2012

Mazars LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of secuon 1212 of the Companies Act 2006
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